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☐ Affects De Paul Ventures, LLC  
☐ Affects De Paul Ventures - San Jose 

Dialysis, LLC 

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION OF 
(1) WAHEED WAHIDI FOR 
AUTHORIZATION TO FILE A CLASS 
PROOF OF CLAIM ON BEHALF OF 
CLAIMANTS SIMILARLY SITUATED, 
AND (2) ERNESTO MADRIGAL FOR 
AUTHORIZATION TO FILE A CLASS 
REQUEST FOR PAYMENT OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE ON 
BEHALF OF CLAIMANTS SIMILARLY 
SITUATED; MEMORANDUM OF POINTS 
AND AUTHORITIES; DECLARATIONS 
OF KEVIN T. BARNES, EMIL DAVTYAN, 
AND DAVID B. SHEMANO 

Hearing: 
Date: April 24, 2019 
Time: 10:00 a.m. 
Place: Courtroom 1568 
 255 E. Temple Street 
 Los Angeles, CA 90012 
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on April 24, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as 

the matter can be heard, before the Honorable Ernest M. Robles, United States Bankruptcy Judge, 

in Courtroom 1658, located at 255 E. Temple Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012, Waheed Wahidi 

(“Wahidi”) will move for an order authorizing Wahidi to file a class prepetition unsecured proof 

of claim on behalf of all creditors similarly situated as Wahidi, and Ernesto Madrigal 

(“Madrigal”) will move for an order authorizing Madrigal to file a request for payment of 

administrative expense on behalf of all creditors similarly situated as Madrigal. 

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Motion is made pursuant to Federal 

Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure 7023 and 9014, and is based on the attached Memorandum of 

Points and Authorities and Declarations of Kevin T. Barnes, Emil Davtyan, and David B. 

Shemano, and such other argument as may be offered prior to or at the time of the hearing on the 

Motion. 

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that a formal response to the Motion must be 

filed with the Bankruptcy Court and served on counsel for Wahidi and Madrigal no later than 

fourteen (14) days before the scheduled hearing.  Pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 9013-1(h), failure 

to file and serve timely a response in accordance with the Local Bankruptcy Rules may be 

deemed by the Bankruptcy Court to be consent to the granting of the relief requested in the 

Motion. 
 

 
DATED:  March 26, 2019 
 

SHEMANOLAW 

By: /s/ David B. Shemano   
David B. Shemano 
 

Attorney for Waheed Wahidi, on behalf of himself 
and all others similarly situated, and Ernesto 
Madrigal, on behalf of himself and all others 
similarly situated 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. 
 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

On August 31, 2018 (the “Petition Date”), the above-captioned debtors (the “Debtors”) 

filed their voluntary petitions for relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code to commence 

the above-captioned case 

This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157 and 1334.  This 

matter relates to the administration of the estate and is accordingly a core proceeding pursuant to 

28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(1),  (2)(A) and 2(B).  Venue of this proceeding is proper in this Court 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1408 and 1409.  The statutory predicate for the relief requested herein 

are Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure 7023 and 9014. 

II. 
 

BACKGROUND 

On the Petition Date, the Debtors operated a nonprofit health care system.  The Debtors 

have represented that in 2017 they provided medical services to over 50,000 inpatients and 

approximately 480,000 outpatients.  The Debtors have represented that on the Petition Date they 

had over 7,300 employees.  During the chapter 11 cases, the Debtors have sold or are in the 

process of selling substantially all of their assets. 

A. The Prepetition Employee Litigation 

Wahidi was an employee of one of the Debtors from approximately May 2017 through 

October 2017.  On June 21, 2018, Wahidi, on behalf of himself and all other employees similarly 

situated, filed a complaint against certain of the Debtors in the Superior Court of the State of 

California for the County of San Mateo (the “Superior Court”), Case No. 18CIV03214, alleging 

violations of the California Labor Code, the California Business and Professions Code, applicable 

Wage Orders issued by the California Industrial Welfare Commission, and related common law 

principles.  A first amended complaint was filed on June 26, 2018.  A copy of the first amended 

complaint is attached as Exhibit A to the Declaration of Kevin T. Barnes (the “Barnes 
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Declaration”). 

In summary, the complaint alleges that the Debtors (1) consistently administered a 

uniform company policy and procedure to round down the recorded time of hourly employees in 

violation of applicable California law and regulations, (2) as a matter of established company 

policy, failed to comply with the meal period requirements of applicable California law and 

regulations, (3) as a matter of established company policy, failed to comply with the rest period 

requirements of applicable California law and regulations, (4) as a matter of established company 

policy, failed to comply with the itemized wage statement requirements of applicable California 

law and regulations, (5) as a matter of established company policy, did not pay all wages due to 

former hourly employees due to the unlawful rounding, meal and rest policies as required by 

applicable California law and regulations, (6) subjected hourly employees to unlawful, unfair 

and/or fraudulent business acts/practices in the form of the above stated violations in violation of 

section 17200 et seq. of the California Business & Professions Code, and (7) are subject to 

penalties pursuant to section 2699 et seq. of the California Labor Code (the “Private Attorneys 

General Act” or the “PAGA”). The complaint includes a request that the Superior Court certify 

the action as a class action and appoint Wahidi as the representative of all others similarly 

situated. 

The litigation was stayed two months after it was commenced when the Debtors filed their 

bankruptcy petitions. 

B. The Debtors’ Illegal Conduct Continued Postpetition 

The Debtors’ illegal conduct described in the amended complaint continued postpetition.  

Madrigal was an employee of one of the Debtors both prepetition and from the Petition Date 

through September 18, 2018.  Madrigal intends to file a request for payment of administrative 

expense on behalf of himself and all other postpetition employees similarly situated based on the 

Debtors’ illegal conduct described in the amended complaint that occurred postpetition. 

C. Efforts To Consensually Resolve The Class Claim Issue 

When the Debtors filed their petitions, they listed Wahidi as their largest unsecured 
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creditor, asserting a disputed claim of $150 million.  A copy of the Debtors’ list of 50 largest 

unsecured creditors is attached as Exhibit B to the Declaration of David B. Shemano (the 

“Shemano Declaration”). 

Because the Debtors filed their petitions before the Superior Court could address whether 

the litigation should proceed as a class action, the authority of Wahidi to act on behalf of all 

others similarly situated has not been adjudicated.  Therefore, to avoid unnecessary expense and 

litigation, on February 6, 2019, counsel for Wahidi and Madrigal contacted counsel for the 

Debtors to see if an agreement could be reached that would permit Wahidi to file a class proof of 

claim and Madrigal to file a class request for payment of administrative expense, while leaving 

any substantive disputes for later resolution.   

On March 8, 2019, counsel for the Debtors finally responded to the request by stating that 

the Debtors are not willing to consent to a class claim.  A copy of the Debtors’ response is 

attached as Exhibit C to the Shemano Declaration. 

III. 
 

WAHIDI SHOULD BE AUTHORIZED 
TO FILE A CLASS PROOF OF CLAIM 

Concurrently with this Motion, Wahidi filed proofs of claim on behalf of himself and all 

others similarly situated against each of the Debtors named in the amended complaint.1 A copy of 

the proof of claim filed against Verity Health System of California, Inc., is attached as Exhibit D 

to the Shemano Declaration. 

Pursuant to Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure 7023 and 9014, this Court has the 

power to authorize Wahidi to file a class proof of claim on behalf of himself and all others 

similarly situated.  Birting Fisheries v. Lane (In re Birting Fisheries), 92 F.3d 939 (9th Cir. 

                                                 
1 On behalf of those class members who provided services to the Debtors within 180 days of the 

Petition Date, the claim is asserted as a priority claim pursuant to section 507(a)(4) of the 

Bankruptcy Code.  Based on information provided by counsel for the Debtors, counsel for Wahidi 

is informed that the Debtors named in the amended complaint are inclusive of all the Debtors that 

had employees that could assert the claims identified in the amended complaint.  Wahidi reserves 

the right to file additional proofs of claim if it is determined that other Debtors have employees 

that should be included in the class. 

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Doc 1914    Filed 03/26/19    Entered 03/26/19 18:52:06    Desc
 Main Document      Page 6 of 81



S
H

E
M

A
N

O
L

A
W

 
L

O
S

 A
N

G
E

L
E

S
 

 

7 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1996). 

As a general rule, class proofs of claims are favored and “particularly appropriate” in 

bankruptcy cases.  First Alliance Mortg. Co. v. First Alliance Mortg. Co., 269 B.R. 428, 444 

(C.D. Cal. 2001).  Accordingly, the party opposing the use of a class claim has the burden to 

demonstrate why the class claim should not be permitted.  Id. at 445. 

In determining whether to authorize a class claim, this Court first decides whether it 

would be beneficial to apply Rule 7023 to the claim process, and then decides whether the 

requirements of Rule 7023 are satisfied in the case.  10 COLLIER ON BANKRUPTCY ¶ 

7023.01 (16th 2018).  Among the facts the Court may consider are (1) whether the class was 

certified prepetition, (2) whether the members of the putative class received notice of the bar date, 

and (3) whether class certification will adversely affect the administration of the estate.  Id. 

A. Wahidi Has The Absolute Right To File A Class Proof Of Claim For All 

Claims Asserted Pursuant To The Private Attorneys General Act 

The complaint filed by Wahidi includes claims filed pursuant to the Private Attorneys 

General Act set forth in section 2699 et seq. of the California Labor Code.  After certain 

conditions are satisfied, section 2699(g) of the PAGA authorizes an aggrieved employee to file a 

lawsuit “on behalf of himself or herself and other current or former employees against whom one 

or more of the alleged violations was committed.” 

In filing a claim pursuant to the PAGA, the employee is acting as the agent of the State of 

California.  Iskanian v. CLS Transportation Los Angeles, LLC, 59 Cal. 4th 348, 394 (2014).  The 

aggrieved employee is not required to satisfy class action requirements.  Arias v. Superior Court, 

46 Cal. 4th 969, 975 (2009). 

Because the PAGA authorizes Wahidi to prosecute his PAGA claims on behalf of all 

other similarly situated employees, and is acting as the authorized agent of the State of California, 

he has the absolute right to file a class claim with respect to all claim brought pursuant to the 

PAGA.  In re Pac. Sunwear of Cal., Inc., 2016 Bankr. LEXIS 2579 *7-12 (Bankr. D. Del. June 

22, 2016). 
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B. A Class Proof of Claim Will Benefit The Claims Administration Process 

The class at issue consists of all of the Debtors’ current and former employees.  Wahidi 

believes that the class may exceed over 7,300 claimants. Class claims filed on behalf of current 

and former employees are routinely authorized by bankruptcy courts.  See, e.g., In re Pac. 

Sunwear of Cal., Inc., 2016 Bankr. LEXIS 2579 (Bankr. D. Del. June 22, 2016) (permitting a 

California wage and hour class proof of claim); In re MF Global, Inc., 512 B.R. 757 (Bankr. 

S.D.N.Y. 2014); Bent v. ABMD Ltd. (In re ABMD Ltd.), 439 B.R. 475 (Bankr. S.D. Ohio 2010);  

Burgio v. Protected Vehicles, Inc. (In re Protected Vehicles, Inc.), 392 B.R. 633 (Bankr. D. S.C. 

2008); Turner v. Talbert (In re Talbert), 347 B.R. 804 (Bankr. E.D. La. 2005). 

In fact, recognizing the benefits of the collective resolution of employee claims, certain 

debtors have either voluntarily consented to a class claim or even preemptively filed a motion 

requesting that the bankruptcy court authorize a class employee claim. See, e.g., In re SIW 

Holding Company, Case No. 18-11579 (Bankr. D. Del. 2018) (Docket No. 61, pages 10-14) 

(motion by debtor preemptively requesting authorization for class counsel to file a class claim);    

The amount of individual claims will vary depending on how long a claimant was 

employed.  While some of the individual claims may be significant, many will be relatively small 

and it would not be economically feasible for many claimants to hire an attorney and prosecute 

their individual claims.  This factor weighs heavily in favor of permitting a class claim.  First 

Alliance Mortg. Co. v. First Alliance Mortg. Co., 269 B.R. at 446.   

Because of the commencement of the Debtors’ cases and the imposition of the automatic 

stay, the class has not yet been certified by the Superior Court.  However, the fact that the 

Superior Court has not yet certified the class is a minor factor that does not prevent this Court 

from permitting the class claim.  Id. at 445. 

While it appears that the Debtors served notice on employees that were employed as of the 

Petition Date, it does not appear that the Debtors served notice on former employees.  The fact 

that many of the class claimants were not served with notice of the commencement of the case 

and bar date is a strong factor supporting a class claim.  Id.   

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Doc 1914    Filed 03/26/19    Entered 03/26/19 18:52:06    Desc
 Main Document      Page 8 of 81



S
H

E
M

A
N

O
L

A
W

 
L

O
S

 A
N

G
E

L
E

S
 

 

9 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Permitting the class claim at this time will not unduly burden the estate.  Counsel for 

Wahidi raised the issue with the Debtors’ counsel over two months ago and filed this Motion 

prior to the bar date.  The Debtors have not confirmed a reorganization plan and are not ready to 

make a distribution to creditors.  Accordingly, the Motion is timely.  Id at 438-39.  Compare, In 

re Ephedra Prods. Liab. Litig., 329 B.R. 1 (S.D.N.Y. 2005) (permission to file class claim denied 

where the class claimant did not request permission until after the debtor had confirmed the plan 

and adjudication of the class claim would unduly delay a distribution to creditors). 

Finally, as set forth above, Wahidi has the absolute right to file a class claim for certain of 

the claims asserted in the complaint.  It will be judicially efficient for all of the claims to be 

administered as part of one class claim as opposed to bifurcating the claims into certain claims 

asserted as part of the class claim and other claims asserted by individual claimants. 

C. The Elements Of FRBP 7023(a) Are Satisfied 

In order to satisfy Rule 7023, Wahidi must demonstrate that the requirements of 

numerosity, commonality, typicality and adequacy have been met. 

1. Numerosity is satisfied 

A class must be “so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.” FRCP 

23(a)(1).  A class size of 27 members has been held to satisfy the requirement.  Tietz v. Bowen, 

695 F. Supp. 441, 445 (N.D. Cal. 1987).  Here, Wahidi estimates that the class includes over 

7,300 current and former employees. 

2. Commonality is satisfied 

The commonality requirement is satisfied when “there are questions of law or fact 

common to the class.”  FRCP 23(a)(2). 

The United States Supreme Court held that a case meets the commonality requirement 

whenever the plaintiffs raise a common contention and the “determination of its truth or falsity 

will resolve an issue that is central to the validity of each one of the claims in one stroke.”  Wal-

Mart Stores, Inc. v. Dukes, 564 U.S. 338, 350 (2011).  The Supreme Court went on to hold that, 

“[w]e quite agree that for purposes of Rule 23(a)(2), even a single common question will do . . .”  

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Doc 1914    Filed 03/26/19    Entered 03/26/19 18:52:06    Desc
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Id. at 359 (internal quotations omitted).  While there needs to be common claims, they “need not 

be identical.”  Stoffels v. SBC Commc’n Inc., 238 F.R.D. 446, 452 (W.D. Tex. 2006).    

This case easily meets the commonality requirement because the claims are based on 

established company policies applicable to all employees.  Courts have recognized that employee 

wage and break claims are amenable to class treatment where the claims are based on a uniform 

company policy. Nguyen v. Baxter Healthcare Corp., 275 F.R.D. 596, 600-01 (C.D. Cal. 2011); 

Driver v. AppleIllinois, LLC, 265 F.R.D. 293, 303 (N.D. Ill. 2010). 

Once liability is established, damages (by whatever formula is established) for individual 

class members can be calculated mechanically by reviewing the Debtors’ payroll records.  

Commonality is not defeated by the need for an individualized damages determination.  Comcast 

Corp. v. Behrend, 133 S. Ct. 1426, 1433 (2013). Accordingly, commonality is easily satisfied 

here. 

3. Typicality is satisfied 

Typicality is established where the “claims or defenses of the representative parties are 

typical of the claims or defenses of the class . . .” FRCP 23(a)(3). 

The test of typicality "is whether other members have the same or similar injury, whether 

the action is based on conduct which is not unique to the named plaintiffs, and whether other 

class members have been injured by the same course of conduct." Hanon v. Dataproducts Corp., 

976 F.2d 497, 508 (9th Cir. 1992).  Generally, “the commonality and typicality requirements” 

tend to merge. Dukes, 564 U.S. at 349.  Indeed, “like commonality, the typicality requirement 

does not mandate that all class members share identical claims.”  In re United Cos. Fin. Corp., 

276 B.R. 368, 373 (Bankr. D. Del. 2002); see also Driver, 265 F.R.D. at 304 (“typicality is a ‘low 

hurdle’ that requires neither complete coextensively nor even substantial identity of claims”).   

Typicality “refers to the nature of the claims of the representative, not the individual 

characteristics of the plaintiff.”  In re United Cos., 276 B.R. 368, 373 (internal citation omitted).  

Factual differences do not defeat typicality. In re Pac. Sunwear of Cal., Inc., 2016 Bankr. LEXIS 

2579 *8 (Bankr. D. Del. June 22, 2016). 

In Driver, the court held that typicality was satisfied because the class representatives’ 
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claims were typical of the class.  Driver, 265 F.R.D. at 304.  In particular, there was no 

suggestion that the proposed class representatives were treated differently from other employees 

under the company‘s standard policy and procedures.  Id.. 

Here, like Driver, because the challenge is to the Debtors’ wage, break and wage 

statement policies and whether they violated the law, the typicality requirement of Rule 23 is met.  

Wahidi was an hourly employee employed by the Debtors, Wahidi and the class members have 

been injured in the same manner, and Wahidi seeks the same relief as the class members.  

Therefore, the typicality requirements of Rule 23 are met. 

4. Adequacy is satisfied 

The final requirement of Rule 23(a) – whether the representative party will fairly and 

adequately protect the interests of the class – is also satisfied here. 

Legal adequacy requires (1) the absence of conflicts of interest between the class 

representatives and their counsel with other class members, and (2) a finding that the class 

representatives and their counsel will vigorously prosecute the action on behalf of the class. 

Resnick v. Frank (In re Online DVD-Rental Antitrust Litig.), 779 F.3d 934, 943 (9th Cir. 2015). 

Here, Wahidi has no interests that diverge from those of the class, and his claims are 

typical of the claims of the class. As noted above, he has been injured in the same manner and 

seeks the same relief as each class member. Further, the same strategies that will vindicate his 

claims will vindicate those of the class. Thus, Wahidi is an adequate representative for the class 

proof of claim. See, e.g., Driver, 265 F.R.D. at 301 (“The named plaintiffs here have a sufficient 

interest in the outcome of the case to ensure their vigorous advocacy, and there are no indications 

that their claims conflict with those of other members of the proposed classes. Accordingly, this 

element is also satisfied.”). 

The Law Office of Kevin T. Barnes and Davtyan PLC are law firms that concentrate their 

practice in employment law, with an emphasis on wage and hour class actions. The lawyers at the 

firms are seasoned litigators who are experienced in employment issues with considerable 

experience in prosecuting wage and hour class actions, and are therefore competent and capable 

of conducting this litigation.  Mr. Barnes’ qualifications are set forth in paragraphs 10-14 of his 
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attached Barnes Declaration and Mr. Davtyans’ qualifications are set forth in paragraphs 3-5 of 

his attached Davtyan Declaration.  Mr. Barnes and Mr. Davtyan will be assisted by experienced 

bankruptcy counsel.  Accordingly, counsel is qualified and able to litigate the claims, thereby 

satisfying the adequacy requirement. See, e.g., Driver, 265 F.R.D. at 300 (adequacy requirement 

satisfied where “Plaintiffs' counsel is competent and experienced in FLSA and Illinois wage law 

class action suits and have acted as representative counsel in numerous actions in federal and state 

court.”). 

Thus, Wahidi and his counsel will adequately represent the proposed employee class in 

accordance with Rule 23(a)(4). 

D. The Elements Of FRBP 23(b) Are Satisfied 

Once the requirements of Rule 23(a) are met, plaintiffs must also satisfy the requirements 

of at least one of the subdivisions of Rule 23(b). 

1. Rule 23(b)(1)(B) Is Satisfied 

Rule 23(b)(1)(B) provides that a class action may be maintained if prosecuting separate 

actions by individual class members would create a risk of  “adjudications with respect to 

individual class members that, as a practical matter, would be dispositive of the interests of the 

other members not parties to the individual adjudications or would substantially impair or impede 

their ability to protect their interests.” 

Class actions are commonly approved pursuant to Rule 23(b)(1)(B) in “limited fund” 

cases, which “is an action in which any recovery will come from a fixed pool of assets that is or 

may be insufficient to satisfy all of the claims against the fund.”  5 MOORE'S FEDERAL 

PRACTICE - CIVIL § 23.42[2][a] (2019).  As set forth above, the Debtors have sold or are in the 

process of selling all of their assets, and this case is now a liquidation case.  The assertion of 

claims in a liquidating bankruptcy case satisfies the test.  In First Alliance Mortg. Co. v. First 

Alliance Mortg. Co., 269 B.R. at 448. 

2. Rule 23(b)(3) Is Satisfied 

Rule 23(b)(3) provides that class action may be maintained if (1) the class members‘ 
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claims not only have common questions of law or fact but they also predominate over any 

individual questions; and (2) the class action is the superior method to adjudicate the action fairly 

and efficiently. 

Rule 23(b)(3) includes a list of factors for courts to consider: (1) interest of members of 

the class in individually controlling the prosecution of separate actions; (2) the extent and nature 

of litigation already commenced by class members; (3) the desirability of concentrating litigation 

of claims in a particular forum; and (4) the difficulties likely to be encountered in managing a 

class action. 

1. Common Questions of Law and Fact Predominate 

The complaint asserts claims based on the Debtors’ company policies that violate 

applicable California law governing wages, breaks and wage statements.  While there might be 

some need to make some factual determinations, including the calculation of individual damages, 

the predominate issue will be the legality of the Debtors’ practices and procedures.  Accordingly, 

the requirement is satisfied.  See, e.g., Sali v. Corona Reg'l Med. Ctr., 909 F.3d 996 (9th Cir. 

2018) (reversing denial of class certification of rounding and wage statement claims); Ayala v. 

U.S. Xpress Enters., 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 125247 (C.D. Cal.). 

2. The Class Action is the Superior Method 

As set forth above, in this case a class proof of claim is a superior method of adjudicating 

this matter than requiring individual claims.  It is highly likely that few if any individual proofs of 

claim will have been filed by the bar date, which will make it clear that most class members do 

not have an interest in individually prosecuting their claims. Moreover, many of the class 

members would be discouraged from vindicating their rights if they were required to pursue their 

claims on an individual basis.  And if this Court were to require individual claims, this Court 

would likely be burdened by individuals trying to navigate through the court system without legal 

representation. 

Therefore, Wahidi has demonstrated that the conditions of Rule 23(b)(3) have been 

satisfied. 
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IV. 
 

THE COURT SHOULD AUTHORIZE A CLASS REQUEST 
FOR PAYMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 

The illegal conduct alleged in the amended complaint continued postpetition and the 

resulting monetary claims are administrative expenses under section 503(b) of the Bankruptcy 

Code.  Gonzalez v. Gottlieb (In re Metro Fulfillment, Inc.), 294 B.R. 306 (BAP 9th Cir. 2003). 

The cause for authority to file a class prepetition proof of claim is also cause for authority 

to file a class postpetition request for payment of administrative expense.  Because Wahidi was 

not a postpetition employee, he cannot serve as the class representative. 2  Madrigal was a 

postpetition employee and can serve.  Accordingly, Madrigal should be authorized to file a class 

request for payment of administrative expense. 

 

V. 
 

ALTERNATIVELY, THE COURT SHOULD ESTABLISH A PROCESS 
FOR COLLECTIVE ADJUDICATION OF THE CLASS CLAIMS 

Should the Court reject Wahidi’s request for authority to file and prosecute a class proof 

of claims, the Court should (1) extend the bar date for members of the class to file individual 

claims, and (2) establish a practical process of for ascertaining and collectively adjudicating the 

claims.  See, Schuman v. Connaught Group, Ltd. (In re Connaught Group, Ltd.), 491 B.R. 88 

(Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 2013) (“If the representative files a timely adversary proceeding or class proof 

of claim, and the Court denies a motion to certify the class, it should set a reasonable bar date to 

allow the members of the putative class to file individual claims.”). 

An alternative process was recently utilized in In re Buffets LLC’s, No. 16-50557-RBK 

(Bankr. W.D. Tex.).  In Buffets, also a wage and hour matter, the court established a process 

                                                 
2 On behalf of those class members who provided services to the Debtors within 180 days of the 

Petition Date, the Wahidi claim is asserted as a priority claim pursuant to section 507(a)(4) of the 

Bankruptcy Code.  Wahidi himself is not eligible to assert a priority claim.  If this Court 

concludes that a class claim is appropriate but Wahidi cannot serve as the class representative of 

the class members asserting a priority claim, the Law Offices of Kevin T. Barnes has been 

retained by additional class members who can serve as the class representative for priority 

claimants, including Madrigal. 
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whereby the debtor produced a notice list, and a notice and consent form was mailed to all 

putative class members to participate in the bankruptcy proceedings.  All consent forms had to be 

filed within 30 days.  A copy of the order establishing the process is attached to the Shemano 

Declaration as Exhibit E.  All of the above was administered substantially after the general bar 

date in the cases by way of forms specially agreed by counsel to all parties. As a testimony to 

what these procedures can accomplish, they elicited over 1,600 workers‘ unpaid wage claims. 

The parties then scheduled “bellwether” trials to expedite the collective adjudication of the 

claims. 

VI. 
 

CONCLUSION 

For the reasons set forth above, Wahidi requests that the Bankruptcy Court enter an order 

authorizing Wahidi to file a proof of claim on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, 

and Madrigal requests that the Bankruptcy Court enter an order authorizing Madrigal to file a 

request for payment of administrative expense on behalf of himself and all others similarly 

situated. 

 

DATED:  March 26, 2019 

 

SHEMANOLAW 

By: /s/ David B. Shemano   

David B. Shemano 

 

Attorney for Waheed Wahidi, on behalf of himself 

and all others similarly situated, and Ernesto 

Madrigal, on behalf of himself and all others 

similarly situated 
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DECLARATION OF KEVIN T. BARNES 

I, Kevin T. Barnes, declare as follows: 

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of California and am an 

attorney of record for Waheed Wahidi (“Mr. Wahidi”) in the action commenced by Mr. Wahidi in 

the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San Mateo, Case No. 18CIV03214.  

I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth in this Declaration and, if called as a witness, 

could and would competently testify thereto. 

2. Mr. Wahidi was employed by Debtor Seton Medical Center from May 2017 

through October 2017.   

3. On June 21, 2018, Mr. Wahidi filed a class action lawsuit against Verity Health 

System Of California, Inc., Verity Business Services, Seton Medical Center, O’Connor Hospital, 

Saint Louise Regional Hospital, Seton Coastside, St. Francis Medical Center, St. Vincent Medical 

Center, and Does 1 To 100, in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San 

Mateo (the “Superior Court”), Case No. 18CIV03214, alleging violations of the California Labor 

Code, the California Business and Professions Code, applicable Wage Orders issued by the 

California Industrial Welfare Commission, and related common law principles. A first amended 

complaint was filed on June 26, 2018, adding Verity Medical Foundation as a defendant.  A copy 

of the amended complaint is attached as Exhibit A. 

4. I have also been retained by Ernesto Madrigal (“Madrigal”). Mr. Madrigal was 

employed by Debtor St. Francis Medical Center from November 2016 through September 18, 

2018. 

5. In summary, the complaint alleges that the Debtors (1) consistently administered a 

uniform company policy and procedure to round down the recorded time of hourly employees in 

violation of applicable California law and regulations, (2) as a matter of established company 

policy, failed to comply with the meal period requirements of applicable California law and 

regulations, (3) as a matter of established company policy, failed to comply with the rest period 

requirements of applicable California law and regulations, (4) as a matter of established company 

policy, failed to comply with the itemized wage statement requirements of applicable California 
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law and regulations, (5) as a matter of established company policy, did not pay all wages due to 

former hourly employees due to the unlawful rounding, meal and rest policies as required by 

applicable California law and regulations, (6) subjected hourly employees to unlawful, unfair 

and/or fraudulent business acts/practices in the form of the above stated violations in violation of 

section 17200 et seq. of the California Business & Professions Code, and (7) are subject to 

penalties pursuant to section 2699 et seq. of the California Labor Code (the “Private Attorneys 

General Act” or the “PAGA”). 

6. The Debtors’ illegal conduct described in the amended complaint continued after 

the Debtors file their bankruptcy cases. 

7. The claims for recompense for violation of wage and hour laws predominates over 

individual issues. The central issue on this claim is simple: whether Debtors violated California 

state wage and hour laws by rounding down time, failing to provide full and complete meal 

breaks, failing to provide full and complete rest breaks, failing to provide itemized wage 

statements and failing to timely pay former employee all wages due.  Resolution of these issues 

will require common proof and predominate over any individualized issues. 

8. Two months after the complaint was filed, the Debtors commenced their 

bankruptcy cases.  No determination of the propriety of class action treatment was made prior to 

the commencement of the bankruptcy cases. 

9. To the best of my knowledge, neither Mr. Wahidi, Mr. Madrigal, nor I, nor any 

person associated with my law firm, have a conflict of interest with the class. 

10. I am a well-experienced class action attorney and have considerable experience in 

class action litigation.  My law firm concentrates its practice in employment law, with an 

emphasis on wage and hour class actions.  I graduated from the University of Colorado at Boulder 

in 1985 with a degree in Business Administration and Real Estate. I graduated from Loyola Law 

School of Los Angeles in 1988. I am currently the managing partner in The Law Offices of Kevin 

T. Barnes in Los Angeles. I am admitted to practice before the following Courts: United States 

Court of Appeal, Ninth Circuit; United States District Court- Northern, Central, and Eastern 

Districts of California; United States District Court- District of Colorado, United States District 
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Court- Fourth Circuit; all of California State Courts; and the United States Supreme Court. I have 

an AV rating with Martindale Hubbell. 

11. In 1997, I was one of the first attorneys in the State of California to represent a 

plaintiff in a class action wage and hour case, specifically the case of Amezcua, et. al. v. Trak 

Auto Corporation, Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. BC183900, coordinated with 

Tett v. Trak Auto Corporation, Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. BC186931. Since 

that time, my firm has been hired by many plaintiff and law firms to serve as class counsel in 

such cases. Few, if any, attorneys in California are more experienced in wage and hour class 

action cases than my firm.   A sampling of the class action and wage and hour litigation on which 

The Law Offices of Kevin T. Barnes has served as lead and/or class counsel include: Cruz v. 

Suntory Water Group, Inc., Case No. BC243596; Joel v. Athlete’s Foot Group, Inc., Case No. BC 

234231; Cardilino v. Perrier, Case No. BC 210181 and Holt v. Great Springs Water, OC 

Superior Court Case No. 810642; Hines v. CSK Auto; Tett v. CSK Auto and Noel v. CSK Auto, 

Case No. San Diego Superior Court, Case No. 720346; Soto et. al. v. Park Uniform Rental 

Service, et. al., Case No. BC215318; Amezcua, et. al. v. Trak Auto Corporation, Case No. BC 

183900 coordinated with Tett v. Trak Auto Corporation, Case No. BC 186931; Maldonado v. 

Footstar Center, Inc., Case No. 00CC06359; Calvo, et. al. v. McKesson HBOC, Inc., et. al., Case 

No. BC 228366 coordinated with Ware, et. al. v. McKesson Water Products Company, Case No. 

BC 231420; Franco v. Vans Inc., Case No. 01CC03995; Cruz v. Suntory Water Group, Inc., Case 

No. BC243596; Toney v. McDonald’s Restaurant, et al., Case No. BC234243; Tong v. 21st 

Century Insurance Company, Case No. 01CC10913 coordinated with Echegaray v. 21st Century 

Insurance Co., Case No. BC255189 and Requirme v. 21st Century Insurance Co., Case No. 

BC253952; Wood v. Hollywood Entertainment, Case No. CV779511 coordinated with Dannelley 

v. Hollywood Entertainment, Inc., Case No. OC 816155 and Peterson v. Hollywood 

Entertainment Corp., Case No. CV788126; and Lynn Lazdowski, et al. v. Bowne of Los Angeles, 

Inc., Case No. 02CC16722.  

12. In 2008 I tried with Joseph Antonelli the case of Mutuc v. Huntington Memorial 

Hospital, Case No. BC288727.  This is one of the few wage and hour class action cases tried in 
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the state of California. Judge William A. MacLaughlin issued a Statement of Decision awarding 

Plaintiffs $32.8 million which led to a $60 million lump sum settlement. Also in 2008, I tried 

another wage and hour class action entitled Solis v. Worldwide Network, Inc., et al., Orange 

County Superior Court Case No. 03CC00069, before Hon. Ronald L. Bauer, which resulted in 

judgment in favor of Defendant Worldwide Network, Inc. I recently tried a third wage and hour 

case in San Diego that is currently on appeal. 

13. My firm has also been involved in numerous favorable appellate court decisions 

which have been very important in wage and hour class action law. These appellate decisions 

include the following cases: 

a. Huntington Memorial Hospital v. Superior Court (2005) 131 Cal.App.4th 893 (a 

landmark decision regarding the manner in which the regular rate must be 

calculated and what is considered a “subterfuge” to avoid the correct payment of 

the regular rate and overtime rate); 

b. Tien v. Sup. Ct. (Tenet Healthcare) (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 528 (protecting the 

interest of putative class members in a wage and hour case who want their identity 

protected); 

c. Jaimez v. Daiohs USA, Inc. (2010) 181 Cal.App.4th 1286 (the criteria required to 

certify pay stub claims, waiting time penalty claims, and meal and break claims 

among other matters);  

d. Williams v Superior Court (Allstate) (2013) 221 Cal.App.4th 1353 (confirms 

several important legal theories which support certification regarding common 

questions);  

e. Cochran v. Schwan’s Home Service, Inc. (2014) 228 Cal.App.4th 1137 (one of the 

first California cases to consider the California Supreme Court decision in Duran 

v. U.S. National Bank Association (2014) 59 Cal.4th 1, holding that plaintiffs can 

use statistical sampling evidence to establish either liability or damages in a wage 

and hour class action case. The Schwan’s opinion is also a seminal case regarding 

an employers’ obligation to reimburse employees’ business expenses under 
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California Labor Code § 2802);  

f. Laffitte v. Robert Half International Inc. (2014) 231 Cal.App.4th 860 (Review 

granted and Opinion superseded by Laffitte v. Robert Half Intern. (2015) 342 P.3d 

1232) (use of a common fund recovery for attorneys’ fees in class action cases). 

On May 27, 2016, I argued this case to the California Supreme Court; 

g.  Vaquero v. Ashley Furniture Industries Inc. 824 F.3d 1150, 2016 WL 3190862 

(9th Cir. June 8, 2016) (limits the impact of Wal-Mart v. Dukes (2011) 564 U S. 

338 with respect to the issue of commonality, limits the impact of Comcast v. 

Behrend (2013) 133 S.Ct. 1426 with respect to predominance and underscores the 

9th Circuit rule that the need for individualized finding with respect to damages 

does not defeat class certification); and 

h. Vaquero v. Ashley Furniture Industries Inc. (2017) 9 Cal.App.5th 98 (expands the 

impact of Bluford v. Safeway Stores, Inc. (2013) 216 Cal.App.4th 864 to 

commissioned employees for the first time; they must be separately compensated 

for rest breaks). 

14. I have been invited on numerous occasions to speak on class action and wage-and-

hour employment issues. I have spoken at seminars by the Labor and Employment Section of the 

Los Angeles County Bar Association, various labor lawyer associations, mediator seminars and 

Nuts & Bolts seminars for new lawyers. I was selected as one of the Top 10 Plaintiff Labor and 

Employment Attorneys in 2008 by the Daily Journal and the Top 75 Labor and Employment 

Attorneys in 2017 by the Daily Journal. I have been selected as a Southern California Super 

Lawyer from 2007-2018 in Employment and Labor. This recognition is a selection by my peers 

based upon ethics, experience and reputation and represents the top 5% of our profession. I am 

also AV rated by Martindale-Hubbell, the highest possible rating for a lawyer. 
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DECLARATION OF EMIL DAVTYAN 

I, Emil Davtyan, declare as follows: 

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of California and am an 

attorney of record for Waheed Wahidi (“Mr. Wahidi”) in the action commenced by Mr. Wahidi in 

the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San Mateo, Case No. 18CIV03214.  

I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth in this Declaration and, if called as a witness, 

could and would competently testify thereto. 

2. I graduated from the Woodbury University in 2008 with a bachelor’s degree in 

Business Finance with highest honors, as the top student in my class. I graduated from 

Southwestern Law School in 2014 in the top 10% of my class. I am currently the principal 

attorney in Davtyan Professional Law Corporation in Woodland Hills, California. I am an 

attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of California and am a member in good 

standing with the State Bar of California. 

3. My legal experience since becoming a member of the California State Bar has 

been exclusively devoted to the practice of California and federal employment law.  My office 

exclusively represents plaintiffs in wage and hour actions with the same or similar causes of 

actions brought forth in the matter pending before this Court. 

4. I have been actively participating in the prosecution and successful settlement of 

multiple wage and hour class action lawsuits, helping to recover wages and penalties on behalf of 

tens of thousands of class members.  My office has been appointed as Class Counsel in several 

class actions, including De La Rosa v. The Coca Cola Company et al. (Superior Court of 

California in Napa, 17CV000787), Gates v. Gate Gourmet, Inc. et. al. (Southern District of 

California, 16-cv-01084-L-AGS), Ramirez v. Milton Roy et. al. (Superior Court of California in 

Los Angeles, BC 632 276), Hawkins v. AvalonBay Communities (Superior Court of California in 

Santa Clara, 17CV316492), Jones Tharpe et al. v. Sprint Corporation et al. (Superior Court of 

California in Los Angeles, BC644645), Ortega et al. v. Nestle Waters North America, Inc. et al. 

(Superior Court of California in Los Angeles, BC623610), Schultz v. Jimbo’s Natural Family, 

Inc. (Superior Court of California in San Diego, 37-2017-00022348-CUE-OE-CTL), Ambrose v. 
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Victor Valley Global et al. (Superior Court of California in San Bernardino, CIVDS1709289), 

Puerta-Gildardo v. Real Time Staffing Services LLC et. al. (Superior Court of California in Los 

Angeles, BC565445), Vargo v. Pregis Innovative Packaging LLC (Superior Court of California in 

Tulare, 270836), Conlin v. Aegis Senior Communities LLC (Northern District of California, 17-

cv-05534-LHK), Galarza v. Kloeckner Metals Corporation (Central District of California, 2:17-

cv-04910-FMO), Estes v. L3 Technologies, Inc. et al. (Southern District of California, 3:17-cv-

02356-H-JMA), Rowser v. Trunk Club, Inc. (Central District of California, 2:17-cv-05064-DSF-

RAO). 

5. My office has been counsel of record in a number of pending wage and hour class 

action lawsuits, including Arellano v. Lopez & Arteaga, Inc. et al. (Superior Court of California 

in Santa Clara, 17CV313029), Ramirez v. Harris Ranch Beef Company (Superior Court of 

California in Fresno, 16CECG04103), Hargrave v. Antelope Valley Hospital (Superior Court of 

California in Los Angeles, BC663252), Barrera et al. v. Exclusive Wireless, Inc. (Superior Court 

of California in Stanislaus, 9000687), Sanchez v. AM Retail Group, Inc. (Northern District of 

California, 3:18-cv-00287-JCS), Juarez v. ISL Employees, Inc. (Superior Court of California in 

Madera, MCV074787), Martinez v. Gallo Cattle Company, LP (Superior Court of California in 

Merced, 18CV-00673), Leach v. The Claremont Colleges, Inc. (Superior Court of California in 

Los Angeles, BC686451), Fajardo v. AHMC Healthcare, Inc. et al. (Superior Court of California 

in Los Angeles, BC629297), among others. 

6. To the best of my knowledge, neither I nor any person associated with my law 

firm have a conflict of interest with the class. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my 

knowledge, information and belief. 

Executed this 26th day of March 2019, at Woodland Hills, California. 

 

      

        Emil Davtyan 
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DECLARATION OF DAVID B. SHEMANO 

 I, David B. Shemano, declare as follows: 

1. I am bankruptcy counsel to Waheed Wahidi and Ernesto Madrigal in the 

bankruptcy cases filed by Verity Health System of California, Inc, and its affiliates (the 

“Debtors”).  Each of the facts contained in this declaration is based upon my personal 

knowledge and, if called as a witness to do so, I could competently testify thereto.   

2. When the Debtors filed their petitions, they listed Mr. Wahidi as their largest 

unsecured creditor, asserting a disputed claim of $150 million.  A copy of the Debtors’ list of 50 

largest unsecured creditors is attached as Exhibit B. 

3. On February 6, 2019, I contacted counsel for the Debtors to see if an agreement 

could be reached that would permit Mr. Wahidi to file a class proof of claim, while leaving any 

substantive disputes for later resolution.  On March 8, 2019, counsel for the Debtor finally 

responded to my request by stating that the Debtors are not willing to consent to a class claim.  

A copy of the Debtors’ response is attached as Exhibit C. 

4. Attached as Exhibit D is the proof of claim concurrently filed by Mr. Wahidi on 

behalf of himself and others similarly situated in the Verity Health System of California, Inc., 

case. 

5. Attached as Exhibit E is Docket No. 2126 in In re Buffets LLC’s, No. 16-50557-

RBK (Bankr. W.D. Tex.). 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed this 26th day of March 2019, at Los Angeles, California. 

  

        /s/ David B. Shemano   
        David B. Shemano 
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Kevin T. Barnes, Esq. (#138477) 
Gregg Lander, Esq. (#194018) 
LAW OFFICES OF KEVIN T. BARNES 
1635 Pontius Avenue, Second Floor 
LOS Angeles, CA 90025-3361 
Tel: (323) 549-9100 / Fax: (323) 549—0101 
Email: Barnes@kbarnes.com 

Emil Davtyan, Esq. (#299363) 
DAVTYAN PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION 
21900 Burbank Boulevard, Suite 300 
Woodland Hills, CA 91367 
Tel.: (818) 992—2935 / Fax: (818) 975—5525 
Email: Emil@davtyanlaw.com 

Attorneys for Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDI, 
on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO 

WAHEED WAHIDI, on behalf Of himself 
and all others similarly situated, 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM OF 
CALIFORNIA, INC., a California 
corporation; VERITY BUSINESS 
SERVICES, a California corporation; 
VERITY MEDICAL FOUNDATION, a 
California corporation; SETON MEDICAL 
CENTER, a California corporation; 
O’CONNOR HOSPITAL, a California 
corporation; SAINT LOUISE REGIONAL 
HOSPITAL (whether or not d/b/a “DePaul 
Urgent Care”), a California corporation; 
SETON COASTSIDE, a California 
corporation; ST. FRANCIS MEDICAL 
CENTER, a California corporation; ST. 
VINCENT MEDICAL CENTER, a 
California corporation; and DOES 1 to 100, 
inclusive, 

Defendants. 

.xvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv 

Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDI, an individual on behalf Of himself and all others similarly 

situated (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Plaintiffs”), hereby files this Complaint against 

Defendants VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM OF CALIFORNLA, INC, VERITY BUS]NESS 

-1- 

FILED 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

/ 18—ClV—03214 

1 
ACM1 

: First Amended Complaint 

We"“H"11111111111 

CLASS ACTION 

ll" 

1. FAILURE TO PAY ALL WAGES 
DUE TO ILLEGAL ROUNDING; 

2. FAILURE TO PROVIDE ALL 
MEAL PERIODS; 

3. FAILURE TO AUTHORIZE AND 
PERMIT ALL PAID REST 
PERIODS; 

4. INDEPENDENT FAILURE TO 
TIMELY FURNISH ACCURATE 
ITEMIZED WAGE STATEMENTS; 

5. DERIVATIVE FAILURE TO 
TIMELY FURNISH ACCURATE 
ITEMIZED WAGE STATEMENTS; 

6. VIOLATIONS OF LABOR CODE 
§203; ,. 

7. PENALTIES PURSUANT TO 
LABOR CODE §2699; AND 

8. UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES

l

1 

Case No.: 18CIV03214 i ' 

COMPLAINT FOR:

.A 
Ea 

331$ 

('3 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

WAHIDI V. VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, et a1. - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

QB
1 Kevin T. Barnes, Esq. (#138477) E E E; E D

Gregg Lander, Esq. (#194018)
2 LAW OFFICES OF KEVIN T. BARNES SAN MATEO QOUNTY

1635 Pontius Avenue, Second Floor ,
3 Los Angeles, CA 90025-3361

Tel.: (323) 549-9100 / Fax: (323) 549-0101
4 Email: Barnes@kbarnes.com

5 Emil Davtyan, Esq. (#299363)
DAVTYAN PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION

6 21900 Burbank Boulevard, Suite 300
Woodland Hills, CA 91367

7 Tel.: (818) 992—2935 / Fax: (818) 975-5525
Email: Emil@davtyanlaw.com

8
Attorneys for PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDI,

9 on behalf ofhimself and all others similarly situated

10 SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

11 FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO (AEME'V‘W‘ _
i Flrst Amended Complaint

12 WAHEED WAHIDI, on behalf ofhimself ) 1 1229198
and all others similarly situated, ) l

13 ) Case No.: 18CIV03214 g
Plaintiffs, ) ‘

l4 ) COMPLAINT FOR:
V. )

15 ) 1. FAILURE TO PAY ALL WAGES
VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM OF ) DUE TO ILLEGAL ROUNDING;

16 CALIFORNIA, INC., a California ) 2. FAILURE TO PROVIDE ALL
corporation; VERITY BUSINESS ) MEAL PERIODS;

l7 SERVICES, a California corporation; ) 3. FAILURE TO AUTHORIZE AND
VERITY MEDICAL FOUNDATION, a ) PERMIT ALL PAID REST

18 California corporation; SETON MEDICAL ) PERIODS;
CENTER, a California corporation; ) 4. INDEPENDENT FAILURE TO '11

19 O’CONNOR HOSPITAL, a California ) TIMELY FURNISH ACCURATE .:
corporation; SAINT LOUISE REGIONAL ) ITEMIZED WAGE STATEMENTS; ‘m

20 HOSPITAL (whether or not d/b/a “DePaul ) 5. DERIVATIVE FAILURE TO m
Urgent Care”), a California corporation; ) TIMELY FURNISH ACCURATE =4.

21 SETON COASTSIDE, a California ) ITEMIZED WAGE STATEMENTS; “(I
corporation; ST. FRANCIS MEDICAL ) 6. VIOLATIONS OF LABOR CODE 4‘.

22 CENTER, a California corporation; ST. ) §203; ’
VINCENT MEDICAL CENTER, a ) 7. PENALTIES PURSUANT TO

23 California corporation; and DOES 1 to 100, ) LABOR CODE §2699; AND
inclusive, ) 8. UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES

24 )
Defendants. ) DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

25 )

26 PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDI, an individual on behalf ofhimself and all others similarly

27 situated (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Plaintiffs”), hereby files this Complaint against

28 Defendants VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM OF CALIFORNLA, INC., VERITY BUSINESS

:fifififix WAI-IIDI V. VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, et a1. - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
FAX:(37J)549—010l
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SERVICES, VERITY MEDICAL FOUNDATION, SETON MEDICAL CENTER, O’CONNOR 

HOSPITAL, SAINT LOUISE REGIONAL HOSPITAL (whether or not d/b/a “DePaul Urgent 

Care”), SETON COASTSIDE, ST. FRANCIS MEDICAL CENTER, ST. VINCENT MEDICAL 

CENTER, and DOES 1 to 100 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Defendants”). Plaintiffs are 

informed and believe, and on the basis of that information and belief, allege as follows: 

I. 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This is a civil action seeking recovery for Defendants’ violations of the California 

Labor Code (“Labor Code”), California Business and Professions Code (“B&PC”), the 

applicable Wage Orders issued by the California Industrial Welfare Commission (hereinafter, the 

“IWC Wage Orders”) and related common law principles. 

2. Plaintiffs’ action seeks monetary damages, including full restitution from 

Defendants as a result of Defendants” unlawful, fraudulent and/or unfair business practices. 

3. The acts complained of herein occurred, occur and will occur, at least in part, 

within the time period from four (4) years preceding the filing of the original Complaint herein, 

up to and through the time of trial for this matter although this should not automatically be 

considered the statute of limitations for any cause of action herein. 

4. For introductory and general information only (and not to be considered a 

proposed class definition), the relevant job titles held by the California citizens in this action are 

Defendants’ hourly-paid employees who were subjected to Defendants’ policies and practices as 

described herein. Any differences in job activities between the different individuals in these 

positions were and are legally insignificant to the issues presented by this action. 

SUMMARY OF CLAIIVIS 

5. With regard to Defendants’ hourly-paid employees, Defendants have: 

a. Failed to pay all wages due to illegal time rounding; 

b. Failed to provide all legally-requisite meal periods; 

0. Failed to authorize and permit all paid legally-requisite rest periods; 

(1. Independently failed to timely furnish accurate itemized wage statements; 

-2- 
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SERVICES, VERITY MEDICAL FOUNDATION, SETONMEDICAL CENTER, O’CONNOR

HOSPITAL, SAINT LOUISE REGIONAL HOSPITAL (whether or not d/b/a “DePaul Urgent

Care”), SETON COASTSIDE, ST. FRANCIS MEDICAL CENTER, ST. VINCENTMEDICAL

CENTER, and DOES 1 to 100 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Defendants”). Plaintiffs are

informed and believe, and on the basis of that information and belief, allege as follows:

I.

INTRODUCTION

1. This is a civil action seeking recovery for Defendants’ violations of the California

Labor Code (“Labor Code” , California Business and Professions Code (“B&PC”), the

applicable Wage Orders issued by the California Industrial Welfare Commission (hereinafter, the

“IWC Wage Orders”) and related common law principles.

2. Plaintiffs’ action seeks monetary damages, including full restitution from

Defendants as a result ofDefendants’ unlawful, fraudulent and/or unfair business practices.

3. The acts complained ofherein occurred, occur and will occur, at least in part,

within the time period from four (4) years preceding the filing of the original Complaint herein,

up to and through the time of trial for this matter although this should not automatically be

considered the statute of limitations for any cause of action herein.

4. For introductory and general information only (and not to be considered a

proposed class definition), the relevant job titles held by the California citizens in this action are

Defendants’ hourly-paid employees who were subjected to Defendants’ policies and practices as

described herein. Any differences in job activities between the different individuals in these

positions were and are legally insignificant to the issues presented by this action.

SUMMARY OF CLAIMS

5. With regard to Defendants’ hourly-paid employees, Defendants have:

a. Failed to pay all wages due to illegal time rounding;

b. Failed to provide all legally-requisite meal periods;

0. Failed to authorize and permit all paid legally-requisite rest periods;

(1. Independently failed to timely furnish accurate itemized wage statements;

-2-
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e. Derivatively failed to timely fumish accurate itemized wage statements; 

f. Violated Labor Code §203; 

g. Incurred penalties pursuant to Labor Code §§2698, et seq.; and 

h. Conducted unfair business practices.
. 

H. 

PARTIES 

PLAINTIFF WAHEED WAHIDI 

6. Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDI is an individual over the age of eighteen (18) and is 

now and/or at all times mentioned in this Complaint was a citizen of the State of California. 

7. Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDI worked for Defendants as an hourly—paid Emergency 

Room Registered Nurse from approximately May 2017 to October 2017 in Daly, California, 

which is in San Mateo County, California. 

8. Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDI seeks recovery herein from Defendants because 

with regard to Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDI, while acting for Defendants in his capacity as an 

hourly—paid employee, Defendants have: 

3) . Failed to pay all wages due to illegal time rounding; 

b. Failed to provide all legally-requisite meal periods; 

0. Failed to authorize and permit all paid legally—requisite rest‘periods; 

d. Independently failed to timely furnish accurate itemized wage statements; 

e. Derivatively failed to timely furnish accurate itemized wage statements; 

f. Violated Labor Code §203; 

g. Incurred penalties pursuant to Labor Code §§2698, et seq.; and 

h. Conducted unfair business practices. 

DEFENDANTS 

9. Defendants VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM OF CALIFORNIA, lNC., VERITY 

BUSINESS SERVICES, VERITY MEDICAL FOUNDATION, SETON MEDICAL CENTER, 

O’CONNOR HOSPITAL, SAINT LOUISE REGIONAL HOSPITAL (whether or not d/b/a 

“DePaul Urgent Care”), SETON COASTSIDE, ST. FRANCIS MEDICAL CENTER and ST. 
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e. Derivatively failed to timely furnish accurate itemized wage statements;

f. Violated Labor Code §203;

g. Incurred penalties pursuant to Labor Code §§2698, et seq.; and

h. Conducted unfair business practices. I

H.

PARTIES

PLAINTIFF WAHEED WAHIDI

6. PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDI is an individual over the age of eighteen (18) and is

now and/or at all times mentioned in this Complaint was a citizen of the State of California.

7. PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDI worked for Defendants as an hourly-paid Emergency

Room Registered Nurse from approximately May 2017 to October 2017 in Daly, California,

which is in San Mateo County, California.

8. PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDI seeks recovery herein from Defendants because

with regard to PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDI, while acting for Defendants in his capacity as an

hourly—paid employee, Defendants have:

a. Failed to pay all wages due to illegal time rounding;

b. Failed to provide all legally-requisite meal periods;

0. Failed to authorize and permit all paid legally-requisite rest‘periods;

d. Independently failed to timely fumish accurate itemized wage statements;

e. Derivatively failed to timely furnish accurate itemized wage statements;

f. Violated Labor Code §203;

g. Incurred penalties pursuant to Labor Code §§2698, et seq.; and

h. Conducted unfair business practices.

DEFENDANTS

9. Defendants VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM OF CALIFORNIA, INC., VERITY

BUSINESS SERVICES, VERITY MEDICAL FOUNDATION, SETON MEDICAL CENTER,

O’CONNOR HOSPITAL, SAINT LOUISE REGIONAL HOSPITAL (whether or not d/b/a

“DePaul Urgent Care”), SETON COASTSIDE, ST. FRANCIS MEDICAL CENTER and ST.

-3-
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l VINCENT MEDICAL CENTER are now and/or at all times mentioned in this Complaint were 

2 California corporations and the owners and operators of an industry, business and/or facility 

3 licensed to do business and actually doing business in the State of California. 

4 DOES 1 TO 100, INCLUSIVE 

5 10. DOES l to 100, inclusive are now, and/or at all times mentioned in this 

6 Complaint were licensed to do business and/or actually doing business in California. 

7 ll. Plaintiffs do not know the true names or capacities, whether individual, partner or 

8 corporate, of DOES 1 to 100, inclusive and for that reason, DOES l to 100 are sued under such 

9 fictitious names pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure (“CCP”) §474. 

10 12. Plaintiffs will seek leave of court to amend this Complaint to allege such names and 

11 capacities as soon as they are ascertained. 

12 ALL DEFENDANTS AND DOES 

13 13. Defendants, and each of them, are now and/or at all times mentioned in this 

14 Complaint were in some manner legally responsible for the events, happenings and circumstances 

15 alleged in this Complaint. 

16 14. Defendants, and each of them, proximately subjected Plaintiffs to the unlawful 

l7 practices, wrongs, complaints, injuries and/or damages alleged in this Complaint. 

18 15. Defendants, and each of them, are now and/or at all times mentioned in this 

19 Complaint were the agents, servants and/0r employees of some or all other Defendants, and vice- 

20 versa, and in doing the things alleged in this Complaint, Defendants are now and/or at all times 

21 mentioned in this Complaint were acting within the course and scope of that agency, servitude 

22 and/or employment. 

23 16. Defendants, and each of them, are now and/or at all times mentioned in this 

24 Complaint were members of and/or engaged in a joint venture, partnership and common 

25 enterprise, and were acting within the course and scope of, and in pursuance of said joint 

26 venture, partnership and common enterprise. 

27 . l7. Defendants, and each of them, at all times mentioned in this Complaint concurred 

28 and contributed to the various acts and omissions of each and every one of the other Defendants 

WT.MNE 
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mfiggggfim WAHIDI V. VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, et al. - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 
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1 VINCENT MEDICAL CENTER are now and/or at all times mentioned in this Complaint were

2 California corporations and the owners and operators of an industry, business and/or facility

3 licensed to do business and actually doing business in the State ofCalifornia.

4 DOES 1 TO 100. INCLUSIVE

5 10. DOES l to 100, inclusive are now, and/or at all times mentioned in this

6 Complaint were licensed to do business and/or actually doing business in California.

7 11. Plaintiffs do not know the true names or capacities, whether individual, partner or

8 corporate, ofDOES 1 to 100, inclusive and for that reason, DOES 1 to 100 are sued under such

9 fictitious names pursuant to California Code ofCivil Procedure (“CCP”) §474.

10 12. Plaintiffs will seek leave ofcourt to amend this Complaint to allege such names and

1 l capacities as soon as they are ascertained.

12 ALL DEFENDANTS AND DOES

13 13. Defendants, and each of them, are now and/or at all times mentioned in this

14 Complaint were in some manner legally responsible for the events, happenings and circumstances

15 alleged in this Complaint.

16 14. Defendants, and each of them, proximately subjected Plaintiffs to the unlawful

17 practices, wrongs, complaints, injuries and/or damages alleged in this Complaint.

18 15. Defendants, and each of them, are now and/or at all times mentioned in this

19 Complaint were the agents, servants and/or employees of some or all other Defendants, and vice-

20 versa, and in doing the things alleged in this Complaint, Defendants are now and/or at all times

21 mentioned in this Complaint were acting within the course and scope of that agency, servitude

22 and/or employment.

23 16. Defendants, and each of them, are now and/or at all times mentioned in this

24 Complaint were members of and/or engaged in a joint venture, partnership and common

25 enterprise, and were acting within the course and scope of, and in pursuance of said joint

26 venture, partnership and common enterprise.

27 _ l7. Defendants, and each of them, at all times mentioned in this Complaint concurred

28 and contributed to the various acts and omissions of each and every one of the other Defendants
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in proximately causing the complaints, injuries and/or damages alleged in this Complaint. 

18. Defendants, and each of them, at all times mentioned in this Complaint approved 

of, condoned and/or otherwise ratified each and every one of the acts and/or omissions alleged in 

this Complaint. 

l9. Defendants, and each of them, at all times mentioned in this Complaint aided and 

abetted the acts and omissions of each and every one of the other Defendants thereby 

proximately causing the damages alleged in this Complaint. 

III. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

20. The California Superior Court has jurisdiction in this matter due to Defendants’ 

aforementioned violations of California statutory law and/or related common law principles. 

21. The California Superior Court also has jurisdiction in this matter because both the 

individual and aggregate monetary damages and restitution sought herein exceed the minimal 

jurisdictional limits of the Superior Court and will be established at trial, according to proof. 

22. The California Superior Court also has jurisdiction in this matter because during 

their employment with Defendants, Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDI and the members of the putative 

Classes herein were all California citizens and Defendants VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, SETON 

MEDICAL CENTER, O’CONNOR HOSPITAL, ST. LOUISE REGIONAL HOSPITAL, SETON 

COASTSIDE, ST. FRANCIS MEDICAL CENTER, ST. VINCENT MEDICAL CENTER are all 

California corporations. Further, there is no federal question at issue, as the issues herein are based 

solely on Califomia statutes and law. 

23. Venue is proper in San Mateo County pursuant to Q §395(a) and QC_P §395.5 in 

that liability arose there because at least some of the transactions that are the subject matter of this 

Complaint occurred therein and/or each Defendant either is found, maintains offices, transacts 

business, and/or has an agent therein. 

IV. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

24. CCP §3 82 provides in pertinent part: “. . .[W]hen the question is one of a common 

-5- 
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in proximately causing the complaints, injuries and/or damages alleged in this Complaint.

18. Defendants, and each of them, at all times mentioned in this Complaint approved

of, condoned and/or otherwise ratified each and every one of the acts and/or omissions alleged in

this Complaint.

19. Defendants, and each of them, at all times mentioned in this Complaint aided and

abetted the acts and omissions of each and every one of the other Defendants thereby

proximately causing the damages alleged in this Complaint.

III.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

20. The California Superior Court has jurisdiction in this matter due to Defendants’

aforementioned violations ofCalifornia statutory law and/or related common law principles.

21. The California Superior Court also has jurisdiction in this matter because both the

individual and aggregate monetary damages and restitution sought herein exceed the minimal

jurisdictional limits of the Superior Court and will be established at trial, according to proof.

22. The California Superior Court also has jurisdiction in this matter because during

their employment with Defendants, PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDI and the members of the putative

Classes herein were all California citizens and Defendants VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, SETON

MEDICAL CENTER, O’CONNOR HOSPITAL, ST. LOUISE REGIONAL HOSPITAL, SETON

COASTSIDE, ST. FRANCIS MEDICAL CENTER, ST. VINCENT MEDICAL CENTER are all

Califomia corporations. Further, there is no federal question at issue, as the issues herein are based

solely on Califomia statutes and law.

23. Venue is proper in San Mateo County pursuant toQ §395(a) and QC_P §395.5 in

that liability arose there because at least some of the transactions that are the subject matter of this

Complaint occurred therein and/or each Defendant either is found, maintains offices, transacts

business, and/or has an agent therein.

IV.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

24. CCP §3 82 provides in pertinent part: “. . .[W]hen the question is one of a common
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or general interest, of many persons, or when the parties are numerous, and it is impracticable to 

bring them all before the court, one or more may sue or defend for the benefit of all.” Plaintiffs 

bring this suit as a class action pursuant to CCP §3 82. 

25. The putative classes Plaintiffs will seek to certify are currently composed of and 

defined as follows: 

a. All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly—paid employees (as 

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period to Whom Defendants 

applied a time rounding policy and practice as specifically described herein 

(hereinafter, the “Rounding Class”); 

All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly—paid employees (as 

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who were subjected to 

Defendants’ policies and practices regarding meal periods as specifically 

described herein (hereinafter, the “Meal Period Class”); 

All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly—paid employees (as 

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who were subjected to 

Defendants’ policies and practices regarding paid rest periods as specifically 

described herein (hereinafter, the “Rest Period Class”); 

All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly-paid employees (as 

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who were independently 

subjected to Defendants’ policies and practices regarding itemized wage 

statements (hereinafter, the “Independent Wage Statement Class”); 

All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly—paid employees (as 

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who were derivatively 

subjected to Defendants’ policies and practices regarding itemized wage 

statements (hereinafter, the “Derivative Wage Statement Class”); 

All formerly-employed California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly- 

paid employees (as defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who 

were subjected to Defendants’ policies and practices regarding Labor Code 
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or general interest, of many persons, or when the parties are numerous, and it is impracticable to

bring them all before the court, one or more may sue or defend for the benefit of all.” Plaintiffs

bring this suit as a class action pursuant to CCP §382.

25. The putative classes Plaintiffs will seek to certify are currently composed of and

defined as follows:

a. All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly-paid employees (as

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period to whom Defendants

applied a time rounding policy and practice as specifically described herein

(hereinafter, the “Rounding Class”);

All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly—paid employees (as

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who were subjected to

Defendants’ policies and practices regarding meal periods as specifically

described herein (hereinafter, the “Meal Period Class”);

All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly—paid employees (as

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who were subjected to

Defendants’ policies and practices regarding paid rest periods as specifically

described herein (hereinafter, the “Rest Period Class”);

All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly-paid employees (as

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who were independently

subjected to Defendants’ policies and practices regarding itemized wage

statements (hereinafter, the “Independent Wage Statement Class”);

All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly-paid employees (as

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who were derivatively

subjected to Defendants’ policies and practices regarding itemized wage

statements (hereinafter, the “Derivative Wage Statement Class”);

All formerly-employed California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly-

paid employees (as defined, supra) during the appropriate time period who

were subjected to Defendants’ policies and practices regarding Labor Code

-6-
WAHIDI V. VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, et al. - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

Exhibit A, page 30

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Doc 1914    Filed 03/26/19    Entered 03/26/19 18:52:06    Desc
 Main Document      Page 31 of 81



10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

uwomor 
Kavm'l‘jmm 

1635 PONIIUS AVDJUE. 
Smut-100x Lnsmm MIMI 

TEASE) $499100 
magmmwl Wmmu 

§203 and the payment of final wages as specifically described herein 

(hereinafter, the “LC 203 Class”); and 

g. All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly-paid employees (as 

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period regarding whom 

Defendants have engaged in unlawful, unfair and/or fraudulent business acts 

or practices prohibited by B_&E §17200, et seq. as specifically described 

herein (hereinafter, the “17200 Class”). 

26. The Rounding Class, Meal Period Class, Rest Period Class, Independent Wage 

Statement Class, Derivative Wage Statement Class, LC 203 Class and 17200 Class are herein 

collectively referred to as the “Classes.” 

27. Throughout discovery in this litigation, Plaintiffs may find it appropriate and/or 

necessary to amend the definition of the Classes. Plaintiffs will formally define and designate a 

class definition at such time when Plaintiffs seek to certify the Classes alleged herein. 

28. Numerosim (fl §382): 

a. The potential quantity of members of theVClasses as defined is so numerous 

that joinder of all members is unfeasible and impractical; 

b. The disposition of the claims of the members of the Classes through this class 

action will benefit both the parties and this Court; 

c. The quantity of members of the Classes is unknown to Plaintiffs at this time; 

however, it is estimated that the membership of the Classes numbers greater 

than 100 individuals; and 

d. The quantity and identity of such membership is readily ascertainable via 

inspection of Defendants’ records. 

29. Superiorig (@ §382): The nature of this action and the nature of the laws 

available to Plaintiffs make the use of the class action format particularly efficient and the 

appropriate procedure to afford relief to Plaintiffs for the wrongs alleged herein, as follows: 

a. California has a public policy which encourages the use of the class action 

device; 
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§203 and the payment of final wages as specifically described herein

(hereinafter, the “LC 203 Class”); and

g. All California citizens employed by Defendants as hourly-paid employees (as

defined, supra) during the appropriate time period regarding whom

Defendants have engaged in unlawful, unfair and/or fraudulent business acts

or practices prohibited by B_&I£ §17200, et seq. as specifically described

herein (hereinafter, the “17200 Class”).

26. The Rounding Class, Meal Period Class, Rest Period Class, Independent Wage

Statement Class, Derivative Wage Statement Class, LC 203 Class and 17200 Class are herein

collectively referred to as the “Classes.”

27. Throughout discovery in this litigation, Plaintiffs may find it appropriate and/or

necessary to amend the definition of the Classes. Plaintiffs will formally define and designate a

class definition at such time when Plaintiffs seek to certify the Classes alleged herein.

28. Numerosigg (fl §382):

a. The potential quantity ofmembers of theClasses as defined is so numerous

that joinder of all members is unfeasible and impractical;

b. The disposition of the claims of the members of the Classes through this class

action will benefit both the parties and this Court;

0. The quantity ofmembers of the Classes is unknown to Plaintiffs at this time;

however, it is estimated that the membership of the Classes numbers greater

than 100 individuals; and

d. The quantity and identity of such membership is readily ascertainable via

inspection ofDefendants’ records.

29. Superiorig (fl §382): The nature of this action and the nature of the laws

available to Plaintiffs make the use of the class action format particularly efficient and the

appropriate procedure to afford relief to Plaintiffs for the wrongs alleged herein, as follows:

a. California has a public policy which encourages the use of the class action

device;
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b. By establishing a technique whereby the claims of many individuals can be 

resolved at the same time, the class suit both eliminates the possibility of 

repetitious litigation and provides small claimants with a method of obtaining 

redress for claims which would otherwise be too small to warrant individual 

litigation; 

0. This case involves large corporate Defendants and a large number of 

individual Class members with many relatively small claims and common 

issues of law and fact; 

d. If each individual member of the Classes was required to file an individual 

lawsuit, the large corporate Defendants would necessarily gain an 

unconscionable advantage because Defendants would be able to exploit and 

overwhelm the limited resources of each individual member of the Classes 

with Defendants’ vastly superior financial and legal resources; 

e. Requiring each individual member of the Classes to pursue an individual 

remedy would also discourage the assertion of lawful claims by the members 

of the Classes who would be disinclined to pursue an action against 

Defendants because of an appreciable and justifiable fear of retaliation and 

permanent damage to their lives, careers and well—being; 

f. Proof of a common business practice or factual pattern, of which the members 

of the Classes experienced, is representative of the Classes herein and will 

establish the right of each of the members of the Classes to recover on the 

causes of action alleged herein; 

g. Absent class treatment, the prosecution of separate actions by the individual 

members of the Classes, even if possible, would likely create: 

i) a substantial risk of each individual plaintiff presenting in separate, 

duplicative proceedings the same or essentially similar arguments and 

evidence, including expert testimony; 

M
' 
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. By establishing a technique whereby the claims ofmany individuals can be

resolved at the same time, the class suit both eliminates the possibility of

repetitious litigation and provides small claimants with a method of obtaining

redress for claims which would otherwise be too small to warrant individual

litigation;

This case involves large corporate Defendants and a large number of

individual Class members with many relatively small claims and common

issues of law and fact;

. If each individual member of the Classes was required to file an individual

lawsuit, the large corporate Defendants would necessarily gain an

unconscionable advantage because Defendants would be able to exploit and

overwhelm the limited resources of each individual member of the Classes

with Defendants’ vastly superior financial and legal resources;

Requiring each individual member of the Classes to pursue an individual

remedy would also discourage the assertion of lawful claims by the members

of the Classes who would be disinclined to pursue an action against

Defendants because of an appreciable and justifiable fear of retaliation and

permanent damage to their lives, careers and well-being;

Proof of a common business practice or factual pattern, ofwhich the members

of the Classes experienced, is representative of the Classes herein and will

establish the right of each of the members of the Classes to recover on the

causes of action alleged herein;

. Absent class treatment, the prosecution of separate actions by the individual

members of the Classes, even ifpossible, would likely create:

i) a substantial risk of each individual plaintiffpresenting in separate,

duplicative proceedings the same or essentially similar arguments and

evidence, including expert testimony;
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ii) a multiplicity of trials conducted at enormous expense to both the 

judicial system and the litigants; 

iii) inconsistent or varying verdicts or adjudications with respect to the 

individual members of the Classes against Defendants; 

iv) potentially incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants; and 

v) potentially incompatible legal determinations with respect to 

individual members of the Classes which would, as a practical matter, 

be dispositive of the interest of the other members of the Classes who 

are not parties to the adjudications or which would substantially 

impair or impede the ability of the members of the Classes to protect 

their interests. 

The claims of the individual members of the Classes are not sufficiently large 

to warrant vigorous individual prosecution considering all of the concomitant 

costs and expenses attendant thereto; 

Courts seeking to preserve efficiency and other benefits of class actions 

routinely fashion methods to manage any individual questions; and 

The Supreme Court of California urges trial courts, which have an obligation 

to consider the use of innovative procedural tools to certify a manageable 

class, to be procedurally innovative in managing class actions. 

Well—defined Community of Interest: Plaintiffs also meet the established 

standards for class certification (see, 6. g. Lockheed Martin Corp. v. Superior Court (2003) 29 

Cal.4th 1096), as follows: 

a. Typicality: The claims of Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDI are typical of the 

claims of all members of the Classes he seeks to represent because all 

members of the Classes sustained injuries and damages arising out of 

Defendants’ common course of conduct in violation of law and the injuries 

and damages of all members of the Classes were caused by Defendants’ 

wrongfiil conduct in violation of law, as alleged herein. 
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ii) a multiplicity of trials conducted at enormous expense to both the

judicial system and the litigants;

iii) inconsistent or varying verdicts or adjudications with respect to the

individual members of the Classes against Defendants;

iv) potentially incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants; and

v) potentially incompatible legal determinations with respect to

individual members of the Classes which would, as a practical matter,

be dispositive of the interest of the other members of the Classes who

are not parties to the adjudications or which would substantially

impair or impede the ability of the members of the Classes to protect

their interests.

. The claims of the individual members of the Classes are not sufficiently large

to warrant Vigorous individual prosecution considering all of the concomitant

costs and expenses attendant thereto;

Courts seeking to preserve efficiency and other benefits of class actions

routinely fashion methods to manage any individual questions; and

The Supreme Court of California urges trial courts, which have an obligation

to consider the use of innovative procedural tools to certify a manageable

class, to be procedurally innovative in managing class actions.

Well-defined Community of Interest: Plaintiffs also meet the established

standards for class certification (see, c.g. Lockheed Martin Corp. v. Superior Court (2003) 29

Cal.4th 1096), as follows:

a. Typicality: The claims of PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDI are typical of the

claims of all members of the Classes he seeks to represent because all

members of the Classes sustained injuries and damages arising out of

Defendants’ common course of conduct in violation of law and the injuries

and damages of all members of the Classes were caused by Defendants’

wrongfial conduct in violation of law, as alleged herein.
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b. Adequacy: Plaintiff WAHEED WAHIDID: 

is an adequate representative of the Classes he seeks to represent; 

will fairly protect the interests of the members of the Classes; 

has no interests antagonistic to the members of the Classes; and 

will vigorously pursue this suit Via attorneys who are competent, 

skilled and experienced in litigating matters of this type. 

c. Predominant Common Questions of Law or Fact: There are common 

questions of law and/or fact as to the members of the Classes which 

predominate over questions affecting only individual members of the Classes, 

including, without limitation: 

i) 

ii) 

iii) 

Vi) 

Whether Defendants’ time rounding policies and practices are illegal 

with regard to the members of the Rounding Class; 

Whether Defendants failed and continue to fail to provide legally- 

requisite meal periods to the members of the Meal Period Class in 

Violation of the Labor Code and Section 11 of the IWC Wage Orders; 

Whether Defendants failed and continue to fail to authorize and permit 

paid legally—requisite rest periods to the members of the Rest Period 

Class in violation of the Labor Code and Section 12 of the IWC Wage 

M; 
Whether Defendants independently failed to timely furnish accurate, 

itemized and legal wage statements to the members of the Independent 

Wage Statement Class; 

Whether Defendants derivatively failed to timely furnish accurate, 

itemized and legal wage statements to the members of the Derivative 

Wage Statement Class; 

Whether Defendants are liable pursuant to Labor Code §203 to the 

members of the LC 203 Class; 
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b. Adeguacy: PlaintiffWAHEED WAHIDID:

i) is an adequate representative of the Classes he seeks to represent;

ii) will fairly protect the interests of the members of the Classes;

iii) has no interests antagonistic to the members of the Classes; and

iv) will vigorously pursue this suit via attorneys who are competent,

skilled and experienced in litigating matters of this type.

c. Predominant Common Questions of Law or Fact: There are common

questions of law and/or fact as to the members of the Classes which

predominate over questions affecting only individual members of the Classes,

including, without limitation:

i) Whether Defendants’ time rounding policies and practices are illegal

with regard to the members of the Rounding Class;

ii) Whether Defendants failed and continue to fail to provide legally-

requisite meal periods to the members of the Meal Period Class in

violation of the Labor Code and Section 11 of the IWC Wage Orders;

iii) Whether Defendants failed and continue to fail to authorize and permit

paid legally-requisite rest periods to the members of the Rest Period

Class in violation of the Labor Code and Section 12 of the IWC Wage

men;
iv) Whether Defendants independently failed to timely furnish accurate,

itemized and legal wage statements to the members of the Independent

Wage Statement Class;

v) Whether Defendants derivatively failed to timely furnish accurate,

itemized and legal wage statements to the members of the Derivative

Wage Statement Class;

vi) Whether Defendants are liable pursuant to Labor Code §203 to the

members of the LC 203 Class;
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vii) Whether the members of the Classes are entitled to penalties pursuant 

to Labor Code §§2698, et seq.; 

viii) Whether Defendants’ conduct constitutes unfair competition within the 

meaning £1313c~ §17200, et seq.; 

ix) Whether Defendants’ conduct constitutes unfair business practices 

within the meaning of m §17200, et seq.; 

x) Whether the members of the Classes are entitled to compensatory 

damages, and if so, the means of measuring such damages; 

xi) Whether the members of the Classes are entitled to injunctive relief; 

xii) Whether the members of the Classes are entitled to restitution; and 

xiii) Whether Defendants are liable for attorneys’ fees and costs. 

31. Whether each member of the Classes might be required to ultimately justify an 

individual claim does not preclude maintenance of a class action (see, e. g. Collins V. Rocha 

(1972) 7 Cal.3d 232, 238). 

V. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

FAILURE TO‘PAY ALL WAGES DUE TO ILLEGAL ROUNDING 

(On Behalf of the Rounding Class) 

(Against All Defendants) 

32. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the 

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fillly set 

forth herein. 

33. Labor Code §204 establishes the fimdamental right of all employees in the State 

of California to be paid wages, including straight time and overtime, in a timely fashion for their 

work. , 

34. Labor Code §510(a) states in pertinent part: “Any work in excess of eight hours in 

one workday and any work in excess of 40 hours in any one workweek shall be compensated 
'1 
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vii) Whether the members of the Classes are entitled to penalties pursuant

to Labor Code §§2698, et seq.;

viii) Whether Defendants’ conduct constitutes unfair competition within the

meaning of _B_&LC_ §17200, et seq.;

ix) Whether Defendants’ conduct constitutes unfair business practices

within the meaning ofm§17200, et seq.;

x) Whether the members of the Classes are entitled to compensatory

damages, and if so, the means ofmeasuring such damages;

xi) Whether the members of the Classes are entitled to injunctive relief;

xii) Whether the members of the Classes are entitled to restitution; and

xiii) Whether Defendants are liable for attorneys’ fees and costs.

31. Whether each member of the Classes might be required to ultimately justify an

individual claim does not preclude maintenance of a class action (see, e.g. Collins V. Rocha

(1972) 7 Cal.3d 232, 238).

V.

CAUSES OF ACTION

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

FAILURE TO~PAY ALL WAGES DUE TO ILLEGAL ROUNDING

(On Behalf of the Rounding Class)

(Against All Defendants)

32. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fillly set

forth herein.

33. Labor Code §204 establishes the fimdamental right of all employees in the State

of California to be paid wages, including straight time and overtime, in a timely fashion for their

work. ,

34. Labor Code §510(a) states in pertinent part: “Any work in excess of eight hours in

one workday and any work in excess of 40 hours in any one workweek shall be compensated
l
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at the rate of no less than one and one—half times the regular rate of pay for any employee.” 

35. Labor Code §1182. 12, effective July 1, 2014, states: “Notwithstanding any other 

provision of this part, on and after July 1, 2014, the minimum wage for all industries shall be not 

less than nine dollars ($9) per hour, and on and after January 1, 2016, the minimum wage for all 

industries shall be not less than ten dollars ($10) per hour.” Further, pursuant to Labor Code 

§1182.12(b)(l)(A), for any employer who employs 26 or more employees, the minimum wage 

shall be as follows: “From January 1, 2017, to December 31, 2017, inclusive, — ten dollars and 

fifty cents ($10.50) per hour.” Finally, pursuant to Labor Code §1182.12(b)(1)(B), for any 

employer who employs 26 or more employees, the minimum wage shall be as follows: “From 

January 1, 2018, to December 31, 2018, inclusive, - eleven dollars ($11) per hour.” 

36. Labor Code §§1194(a) states: “Notwithstanding any agreement to work for a 

lesser wage, any employee receiving less than the legal minimum wage or the legal overtime 

compensation applicable to the employee is entitled to recover in a civil action the unpaid 

balance of the fill amount of this minimum wage or overtime compensation, including interest 

thereon, reasonable attorney’s fees, and costs of suit.” 

37. Further, pursuant to Labor Code §1197, payment of less than the minimum wage 

fixed by the Labor Commission is unlawful. 

38. Pursuant to Labor Code §1198, it is unlawful to employ persons for longer than 

the hours set by the Industrial Welfare Commission or under conditions prohibited by the m 
Wage Order( 5 1. 

39. Pursuant to the IWC Wage Order( s ), Defendants are required to pay the members 

of the Rounding Class for all hours worked, meaning the time during which an employee is 

subject to the control of an employer, including all the time the employee is suffered or permitted 

to work, whether or not required to do so. 

40. Defendants, as a matter of established company policy and procedure, at each and 

every one of the individual facilities owned and/or operated by Defendants, consistently: 

a. Administered a uniform company policy and practice as to the rounding 

policies regarding the members of the Rounding Class; and 
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at the rate ofno less than one and one—half times the regular rate ofpay for any employee.”

35. Labor Code §1182. 12, effective July 1, 2014, states: “Notwithstanding any other

provision of this part, on and after July 1, 2014, the minimum wage for all industries shall be not

less than nine dollars ($9) per hour, and on and after January 1, 2016, the minimum wage for all

industries shall be not less than ten dollars ($10) per hour.” Further, pursuant to Labor Code

§1182.12(b)(1)(A), for any employer who employs 26 or more employees, the minimum wage

shall be as follows: “From January 1, 2017, to December 31, 2017, inclusive, — ten dollars and

fifty cents ($10.50) per hour.” Finally, pursuant to Labor Code §1182.12(b)(l)(B), for any

employer who employs 26 or more employees, the minimum wage shall be as follows: “From

January 1, 2018, to December 31, 2018, inclusive, - eleven dollars ($11) per hour.”

36. Labor Code §§1194(a) states: “Notwithstanding any agreement to work for a

lesser wage, any employee receiving less than the legal minimum wage or the legal overtime

compensation applicable to the employee is entitled to recover in a civil action the unpaid

balance of the full amount of this minimum wage or overtime compensation, including interest

thereon, reasonable attorney’s fees, and costs of suit.”

37. Further, pursuant to Labor Code §1197, payment of less than the minimum wage

fixed by the Labor Commission is unlawful.

38. Pursuant to Labor Code §1198, it is unlawfirl to employ persons for longer than

the hours set by the Industrial Welfare Commission or under conditions prohibited by theM

Wage Ordert s ).

39. Pursuant to the IWC Wage Order(s ), Defendants are required to pay the members

of the Rounding Class for all hours worked, meaning the time during which an employee is

subject to the control of an employer, including all the time the employee is suffered or permitted

to work, whether or not required to do so.

40. Defendants, as a matter of established company policy and procedure, at each and

every one of the individual facilities owned and/or operated by Defendants, consistently:

a. Administered a uniform company policy and practice as to the rounding

policies regarding the members of the Rounding Class; and

-12-
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b. Rounded the actual time worked and recorded by the members of the 

Rounding Class, usually down, so that during the course of the their 

employment, the members of the Rounding Class were paid far less than 

they would have been paid had they been paid for actual recorded time 

rather than “rounded” time. 

41. Because Defendants required the members of the Rounding Class to remain under 

Defendants’ control without paying therefore, this resulted in the members of the Rounding 

Class earning less than the legal minimum wage in the State of California. 

42. Defendants’ pattern, practice and uniform administration of corporate policy 

regarding illegal employee compensation as described herein is unlawfill and creates an 

entitlement, pursuant to Labor Code §218, to recovery by Plaintiffs and the members of the 

Rounding Class, in a civil action, of the unpaid balance of the full amount of wages owing, 

calculated at the appropriate rate. 

43. Further, Defendants’ pattern and practice in uniform administration of corporate 

policy regarding Defendants’ failure to pay the legal minimum wage to the members of the 

Rounding Class as described herein is unlawful and creates entitlement, pursuant to Labor Code 

§ll94(a), to recovery by the members of the Rounding Class, in a civil action, for the unpaid 

balance of the full amount of the unpaid minimum wages owed, calculated as the difference 

between the straight time compensation paid and the applicable minimum wage (and/or the full 

amount of unpaid overtime compensation, which includes any unpaid straight time and unpaid 

overtime premium for overtime hours worked), including interest thereon. 

44. Pursuant to Labor Code §l 194.2(a) (which provides that in any action under 

Labor Code §ll94, an employee shall be entitled to recover liquidated damages), the members of 

the Rounding Class seek recovery of liquidated damages on the straight—time portion of 

uncompensated hours of work (not including the overtime portion thereof) in an amount equal to 

the wages unlawfully unpaid and interest thereon. 

45. That calculation of individual damages for the members of the Rounding Class 

may at some point be required does not foreclose the possibility of taking common evidence on 

-13- 
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1 b. Rounded the actual time worked and recorded by the members of the

2 Rounding Class, usually down, so that during the course of the their

3 employment, the members of the Rounding Class were paid far less than

4 they would have been paid had they been paid for actual recorded time

5 rather than “rounded” time.

6 41. Because Defendants required the members of the Rounding Class to remain under

7 Defendants’ control without paying therefore, this resulted in the members of the Rounding

8 Class earning less than the legal minimum wage in the State ofCalifornia.

9 42. Defendants’ pattern, practice and uniform administration of corporate policy

10 regarding illegal employee compensation as described herein is unlawfill and creates an

11 entitlement, pursuant to Labor Code §218, to recovery by Plaintiffs and the members of the

12 Rounding Class, in a civil action, of the unpaid balance of the fill] amount ofwages owing,

13 calculated at the appropriate rate.

14 43. Further, Defendants’ pattern and practice in uniform administration of corporate

15 policy regarding Defendants’ failure to pay the legal minimum wage to the members of the

16 Rounding Class as described herein is unlawful and creates entitlement, pursuant to Labor Code

17 §1194(a), to recovery by the members of the Rounding Class, in a civil action, for the unpaid

18 balance of the fill amount of the unpaid minimum wages owed, calculated as the difference

19 between the straight time compensation paid and the applicable minimum wage (and/or the full

20 amount ofunpaid overtime compensation, which includes any unpaid straight time and unpaid

21 overtime premium for overtime hours worked), including interest thereon.

22 44. Pursuant to Labor Code §1194.2(a) (which provides that in any action under

23 Labor Code §1194, an employee shall be entitled to recover liquidated damages), the members of

24 the Rounding Class seek recovery of liquidated damages on the straight-time portion of

25 uncompensated hours ofwork (not including the overtime portion thereof) in an amount equal to

26 the wages unlawfully unpaid and interest thereon.

27 45. That calculation of individual damages for the members of the Rounding Class

28 may at some point be required does not foreclose the possibility of taking common evidence on
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questions regarding their entitlement to overtime compensation (see, e. g. Collins V. Rocha (1972) 

7 Cal.3d 232; Hypolite v. Carleson (‘1 97 5) 52 Cal.App.3d 566; Employment Development Dept. 

V. Superior Court (1981) 30 Ca1.3d256). 

46. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.6, Labor Code §l 194(a) and Q §3287, the 

members of the Rounding Class seek recovery of pre—judgment interest on all amounts recovered 

herein. 

47. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.5 and/or Labor Code §1l94, the members of the 

Rounding Class request that the Court award reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by 

them in this action. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

FAILURE TO PROVIDE ALL MEAL PERIODS 

(On Behalf of the Meal Period Class) 

(Against All Defendants) 

48. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the 

allegations contained inthe preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

49. Labor Code §226.7(b) provides that “An employer shall not require an employee 

to work during a meal or rest or recovery period mandated pursuant to an applicable statute, or 

applicable regulation, standard, or order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the Occupational 

Safety and Health Standards Board, or the Division of Occupational Safety and Health.” 

50. Labor Code §512 provides that “An employer may not employ an employee for a 

work period of more than five hours per day without providing the employee with a meal period 

of not less than 30 minutes, except that if the total work period per day of the employee is no 

more than six hours, the meal period may be waived by mutual consent of both the employer and 

employee. An employer may not employ an employee for a work period of more than 10 hours 

per day without providing the employee with a second meal period of not less than 30 minutes, 

except that if the total hours worked is no more than 12 hours, the second meal period may be 

waived by mutual consent of the employer and the employee only if the first meal period was not 
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questions regarding their entitlement to overtime compensation (see, e.g. Collins v. Rocha (1972)

7 Cal.3d 232; Hypolite v. Carleson (ll 975) 52 Cal.App.3d 566; Emploment Development Dept.

v. Superior Court (1981) 30 Cal.3d 256).

.46. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.6, Labor Code §1194(a) andE §3287, the

members of the Rounding Class seek recovery ofpre—judgment interest on all amounts recovered

herein.

47. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.5 and/or Labor Code §l 194, the members of the

Rounding Class request that the Court award reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by

them in this action.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

FAILURE TO PROVIDE ALL MEAL PERIODS

(On Behalf of the Meal Period Class)

(Against All Defendants)

48. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the

allegations contained in‘the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set

forth herein.

49. Labor Code §226.7(b) provides that “An employer shall not require an employee

to work during a meal or rest or recovery period mandated pursuant to an applicable statute, or

applicable regulation, standard, or order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the Occupational

Safety and Health Standards Board, or the Division ofOccupational Safety and Health.”

50. Labor Code §512 provides that “An employer may not employ an employee for a

work period ofmore than five hours per day without providing the employee with a meal period

ofnot less than 30 minutes, except that if the total work period per day of the employee is no

more than six hours, the meal period may be waived bymutual consent ofboth the employer and

employee. An employer may not employ an employee for a work period ofmore than 10 hours

per day without providing the employee with a second meal period ofnot less than 30 minutes,

except that if the total hours worked is no more than 12 hours, the second meal period may be

waived by mutual consent of the employer and the employee only if the first meal period was not

-14-
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51. Labor Code §5 16 provides that the Industrial Welfare Commission “may adopt or 

amend working condition orders with respect to break periods, meal periods, and days of rest for 

any workers in California consistent with the health and welfare of those workers.” 

52. Section 11(A) of the IWC Wage Orders provides that “Unless the employee is 

relieved of all duty during a 30 minute meal period, the meal period shall be considered an “on 

duty” meal period and counted as time worked. An “on duty” meal period shall be permitted 

only when the nature of the work prevents an employee from being relieved of all duty and when 

by written agreement between the parties an on—the—job paid meal period is agreed to. The 

written agreement shall state that the employee may, in writing, revoke the agreement at any 

time.” 

53. Section 11(3) of the IWC Wage Order! s) provides that “If an employer fails to 

provide an employee a meal period in accordance with the applicable provisions of this order, the 

employer shall pay the employee, one (1) hour of pay at the employee’s regular rate of 

compensation for each workday that the meal period is not provided.” 

54. On one or more occasions, the members of the Meal Period Class worked over 

five (5) hours per shift and therefore were entitled to a meal period of not less than thirty (30) 

minutes prior to exceeding five (5) hours of employment. 

55. Further, on one or more occasions, some members of the Meal Period Class 

worked over ten (10) hours per shift and therefore were entitled to a second meal period of not 

less than 30 minutes. 

56. The members of the Meal Period Class did not validly or legally waive their meal 

periods, by mutual consent with Defendants or otherwise. 

57. The members of the Meal Period Class did not enter into any written agreement 

with Defendants agreeing to an on-the—job paid meal period. 

58. As a matter of Defendants’ established company policy, Defendants failed to 

always comply with the meal period requirements established by Labor Code §226.7, La_bor 

M §512, Labor Code §516 and Section 11 of the IWC Wage Order! s) by failing to always 
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51. Labor Code §5 16 provides that the Industrial Welfare Commission “may adopt or

amend working condition orders with respect to break periods, meal periods, and days of rest for

any workers in California consistent with the health and welfare of those workers.”

52. Section 11(A) of the IWC Wage Orders provides that “Unless the employee is

relieved of all duty during a 30 minute meal period, the meal period shall be considered an “on

duty” meal period and counted as time worked. An “on duty” meal period shall be permitted

only when the nature of the work prevents an employee from being relieved of all duty and when

by written agreement between the parties an on—the-job paid meal period is agreed to. The

written agreement shall state that the employee may, in writing, revoke the agreement at any

time.”

53. Section 11(B) of the IWC Wage Order(s) provides that “If an employer fails to

provide an employee a meal period in accordance with the applicable provisions of this order, the

employer shall pay the employee, one (1) hour ofpay at the employee’s regular rate of

compensation for each workday that the meal period is not provided.”

54. On one or more occasions, the members of the Meal Period Class worked over

five (5) hours per shift and therefore were entitled to a meal period ofnot less than thirty (30)

minutes prior to exceeding five (5) hours of employment.

55. Further, on one or more occasions, some members of the Meal Period Class

worked over ten (10) hours per shift and therefore were entitled to a second meal period of not

less than 30 minutes.

56. The members of the Meal Period Class did not validly or legally waive their meal

periods, by mutual consent with Defendants or otherwise.

57. The members of the Meal Period Class did not enter into any written agreement

with Defendants agreeing to an on-the—job paid meal period.

58. As a matter of Defendants’ established company policy, Defendants failed to

always comply with the meal period requirements established by Labor Code §226.7, La_bor

M§512, Labor Code §516 and Section 11 of the IWC Wage Order! s) by failing to always
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provide the members of the Meal Period Class with a first and in some cases a second legally 

compliant meal period. 

59. Pursuant to Section 11(B) of the IWC Wage Order(s) and Labor Code §226.7(c) 

which states “If an employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in 

accordance with a state law, including, but not limited to, an applicable statute or applicable 

regulation, standard, or order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the Occupational Safety and 

Health Standards Board, or the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, the employer shall 

pay the employee one additional hour of pay at the employee's regular rate of compensation for 

’ each workday that the meal or rest or recovery period is not provided,” the members of the Meal 

Period Class are entitled to damages in an amount equal to one (1) additional hour of pay at each 

employee’s regular rate of compensation for each work day that the meal period was not 

provided, in a sum to be proven at trial. 

60. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.6 and 92 §3287, the members of the Meal Period 

Class seek recovery of pre—judgment interest on all amounts recovered herein. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

FAILURE TO AUTHORIZE AND PERMIT ALL PAID REST PERIODS 

(On Behalf of the Rest Period Class) 

(Against All Defendants) 

61. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the 

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

62. Labor Code §226.7(b) provides that “An employer shall not require an employee 

to work during a meal or rest or recovery period mandated pursuant to an applicable statute, or 

applicable regulation, standard, or order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the Occupational 

Safety and Health Standards Board, or the Division of Occupational Safety and Health.” 

63. Labor Code §516 provides that the Industrial Welfare Commission “may adopt or 

amend working condition orders with respect to break periods, meal periods, and days of rest for 

any workers in California consistent with the health and welfare of those workers.” 

-16- 
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provide the members of the Meal Period Class with a first and in some cases a second legally

compliant meal period.

59. Pursuant to Section 11(B) of the IWC Wage Order(s) and Labor Code §226.7(c)

which states “If an employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in

accordance with a state law, including, but not limited to, an applicable statute or applicable

regulation, standard, or order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the Occupational Safety and

Health Standards Board, or the Division ofOccupational Safety and Health, the employer shall

pay the employee one additional hour ofpay at the employee's regular rate of compensation for

- each workday that the meal or rest or recovery period is not provided. ,” the members of the Meal

Period Class are entitled to damages in an amount equal to one (1) additional hour ofpay at each

employee’s regular rate of compensation for each work day that the meal period was not

provided, in a sum to be proven at trial.

60. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.6 and QC §3287, the members of the Meal Period

Class seek recovery ofpre-judgment interest on all amounts recovered herein.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

FAILURE TO AUTHORIZE AND PERMIT ALL PAID REST PERIODS

(On Behalf of the Rest Period Class)

(Against All Defendants)

61. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fiilly set

forth herein.

62. Labor Code §226.7(b) provides that “An employer shall not require an employee

to work during a meal or rest or recovery period mandated pursuant to an applicable statute, or

applicable regulation, standard, or order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the Occupational

Safety and Health Standards Board, or the Division ofOccupational Safety and Healt .”

63. Labor Code §516 provides that the Industrial Welfare Commission “may adopt or

amend working condition orders with respect to break periods, meal periods, and days ofrest for

any workers in California consistent with the health and welfare of those workers.”
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64. Section 12(A) of the IWC Wage Order! s) states: “Every employer shall authorize 

and permit all employees to take rest periods, which insofar as practicable shall be in the middle 

of each work period. The authorized rest period time shall be based on the total hours worked 

daily at the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof. 

However, a rest period need not be authorized for employees whose total daily work time is less 

than three and one—half (3 1/2) hours. Authorized rest period time shall be counted as hours 

worked for which there shall be no deduction from wages.” 

65. Section 12(B) of the IWC Wage Ordergsl states: “If an employer fails to provide
‘ 

an employee a rest period in accordance with the applicable provisions of this order, the 

employer shall pay the employee one (1) hour of pay at the employee’s regular rate of 

compensation for each workday that the rest period is not provided.” 

66. The members of the Rest Period Class sometimes worked over four (4) hours per 

shift. Further, the members of the Rest Period Class sometimes worked over six (6) hours per 

shift, and in some cases over ten (10) hours per shift.
. 

67. The members of the Rest Period Class were entitled to a rest period of not less 

than ten (10) minutes prior to exceeding four (4) hours of employment. 

68. As a matter of Defendants’ established company policy, Defendants failed to 

always authorize and permit all required rest periods established by Labor Code §226.7 and 

Labor Code §5'16 and Section 12 of the IWC Wage Order(s). 

69. Pursuant to Section 12 of the IWC Wage Order(s) and Labor Code §226.7(b) 

which states “If an employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in 

accordance with a state law, including, but not limited to, an applicable statute or applicable 

regulation, standard, or order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the Occupational Safety and 

Health Standards Board, or the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, the employer shall 

pay the employee one additional hour of pay at the employee's regular rate of compensation for 

each workday that the meal or rest or recovery period is not provided,” the members of the Rest 

Period Class are entitled to damages in an amount equal to one (1) additional hour of pay at each 

employee’s regular rate of compensation for each work day that the rest period was not so 
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64. Section 12(A) of the IWC Wage Order! s) states: “Every employer shall authorize

and permit all employees to take rest periods, which insofar as practicable shall be in the middle

of each work period. The authorized rest period time shall be based on the total hours worked

daily at the rate of ten (10) minutes net rest time per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof.

However, a rest period need not be authorized for employees whose total daily work time is less

than three and one—half (3 1/2) hours. Authorized rest period time shall be counted as hours

worked for which there shall be no deduction from wages.”

65. Section 12(B) of the IWC Wage Ordergs) states: “If an employer fails to provide ‘

an employee a rest period in accordance with the applicable provisions of this order, the

employer shall pay the employee one (1) hour ofpay at the employee’s regular rate of

compensation for each workday that the rest period is not provided.”

66. The members of the Rest Period Class sometimes worked over four (4) hours per

shift. Further, the members of the Rest Period Class sometimes worked over six (6) hours per

shift, and in some cases over ten (10) hours per shift. .

67. The members of the Rest Period Class were entitled to a rest period of not less

than ten (10) minutes prior to exceeding. four (4) hours of employment.

68. As a matter ofDefendants’ established company policy, Defendants failed to

always authorize and permit all required rest periods established by Labor Code §226.7 and

Labor Code §5'16 and Section 12 of the IWC Wage Order(s).

69. Pursuant to Section 12 of the IWC Wage Order(s) and Labor Code §226.7(b)

which states “If an employer fails to provide an employee a meal or rest or recovery period in

accordance with a state law, including, but not limited to, an applicable statute or applicable

regulation, standard, or order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the Occupational Safety and

Health Standards Board, or the Division ofOccupational Safety and Health, the employer shall

pay the employee one additional hour ofpay at the employee's regular rate of compensation for

each workday that the meal or rest or recovery period is not provided,” the members of the Rest

Period Class are entitled to damages in an amount equal to one (1) additional hour ofpay at each

employee’s regular rate of compensation for each work day that the rest period was not so
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provided. 

70. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.6 and CC §3287, the members of the Rest Period 

Class seek recovery of pre—judgment interest on all amounts recovered herein. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
' INDEPENDENT FAILURE TO TIMELY 

FURNISH ACCURATE ITEMIZED WAGE STATEMENTS 

(On Behalf of the Independent Wage Statement Class) 

(Against All Defendants) 

71. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the 

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

72. Labor Code §226(a) states in pertinent part: “Every employer shall, semimonthly 

or at the time of each payment of wages, furnish each of his or her employees, either as a 

detachable part of the check, draft, or voucher paying the employee’s wages, or separately when 

wages are paid by personal check or cash, an accurate itemized statement in writing showing ( 1) 

gross wages earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee, except for any employee whose 

compensation is Solely based on a salary and Who is exempt from payment of overtime under 

subdivision (a) of Section 515 or any applicable order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, (3) 

the number of piece-rate units earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee is paid on a 

piece—rate basis, (4) all deductions, provided that all deductions made on written orders of the 

employee may be aggregated and shown as one item, (5) net wages earned, (6) the inclusive 

dates of the period for which the employee is paid, (7) the name of the employee and only the 

last four digits of his or her social security number or an employee identification number other 

than a social security number, (8) the name and address of the legal entity that is the employer 

and, if the employer is a farm labor contractor, as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 1682, the 

name and address of the legal entity that secured the services of the employer, and (9) all 

applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period. . .”.

M 
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provided.

70. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.6 and CC §3287, the members of the Rest Period

Class seek recovery ofpre—judgment interest on all amounts recovered herein.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

' INDEPENDENT FAILURE TO TIMELY

FURNISH ACCURATE ITEMIZED WAGE STATENIENTS

(On Behalf of the Independent Wage Statement Class)

(Against All Defendants)

71. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set

forth herein.

72. Labor Code §226(a) states in pertinent part: “Every employer shall, semimonthly

or at the time of each payment ofwages, fiirnish each ofhis or her employees, either as a

detachable part of the check, draft, or voucher paying the employee’s wages, or separately when

wages are paid by personal check or cash, an accurate itemized statement in writing showing (1)

gross wages earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee, except for any employee whose

compensation is 'solely based on a salary and Who is exempt from payment of overtime under

subdivision (a) of‘ Section 515 or any applicable order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, (3)

the number ofpiece-rate units earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee is paid on a

piece-rate basis, (4)1 all deductions, provided that all deductions made on written orders of the

employee may be aggregated and shown as one item, (5) net wages earned, (6) the inclusive

dates of the period for which the employee is paid, (7) the name of the employee and only the

last four digits ofhis or her social security number or an employee identification number other

than a social security number, (8) the name and address of the legal entity that is the employer

and, if the employer is a farm labor contractor, as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 1682, the

name and address of the legal entity that secured the services of the employer, and (9) all

applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period. . .”.

H/
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1 73. As a pattern and practice, in violation of Labor Code §226(a), Defendants did not 

2 and still do not furnish each of the members of the Independent Wage Statement Class with an 

3 accurate itemized statement in writing showing all applicable hourly rates in effect during the 

4 pay period. 

5 74. As of January 1, 2013, SB 1255 amended Labor Code §226 to clarify that an 

6 employee suffers injury if the employer fails to provide accurate and complete information as 

7 required by any one or more items listed in Labor Code §226(a)(1)—(9) and the employee cannot 

8 promptly and easily ascertain requisite information without reference to other documents or 

9 information. 

10 75. Here, the members of Independent Wage Statement Class suffered injury because 

11 Defendants failed to provide accurate and complete information as required by one or more items 

12 listed in Labor Code §226(a)(1)—(9) and the Independent Wage Statement Class members could 

13 not and cannot promptly and easily ascertain requisite information without reference to other 

14 documents or information. 

15 76. In addition, the members of the Independent Wage Statement Class have suffered 

16 injury as a result of Defendants’ failure to maintain accurate records for the members of the 

17 Independent Wage Statement Class in that the members of the Independent Wage Statement 

18 Class were not timely provided written accurate itemized statements showing all requisite 

19 information, including but not limited to all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay 

20 period, in Violation of Labor Code §226, such that the members of the Independent Wage 

21 Statement Class were misled by Defendants as to the correct information regarding various 

22 items, including but not limited to all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period. 

23 77. The actual injuries suffered by the members of the Independent Wage Statement 

24 Class as a result of Defendants’ knowing and intentional failure to maintain accurate records for 

25 the members of the Independent Wage Statement Cla‘ss include but are not limited to: 

26 a. That such practice prevents the members of the Independent Wage Statement 

27 Class from being able to effectively challenge information on their wage - 

28 statements; and/or 
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1 73. As a pattern and practice, in violation of Labor Code §226(a), Defendants did not

2 and still do not fumish each of the members of the Independent Wage Statement Class with an

3 accurate itemized statement in writing showing all applicable hourly rates in effect during the

4 pay period.

5 74. As of January 1, 2013, SB 1255 amended Labor Code §226 to clarify that an

6 employee suffers injury if the employer fails to provide accurate and complete information as

7 required by any one or more items listed in Labor Code §226(a)(1)—(9) and the employee cannot

8 promptly and easily ascertain requisite information without reference to other documents or

9 information.

10 75. Here, the members of Independent Wage Statement Class suffered injury because

11 Defendants failed to provide accurate and complete information as required by one or more items

12 listed in Labor Code §226(a)(1)—(9) and the Independent Wage Statement Class members could

13 not and cannot promptly and easily ascertain requisite information without reference to other

14 documents or information.

15 76. In addition, the members of the Independent Wage Statement Class have suffered

l6 injury as a result ofDefendants’ failure to maintain accurate records for the members of the

17 Independent Wage Statement Class in that the members of the Independent Wage Statement

18 Class were not timely provided written accurate itemized statements showing all requisite

19 information, including but not limited to all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay

20 period, in violation of Labor Code §226, such that the members of the Independent Wage

21 Statement Class were misled by Defendants as to the correct information regarding various

22 items, including but not limited to all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period.

23 77. The actual injuries suffered by the members of the Independent Wage Statement

24 Class as a result ofDefendants’ knowing and intentional failure to maintain accurate records for

25 the members of the Independent Wage Statement Cla‘ss include but are not limited to:

26 a. That such practice prevents the members of the Independent Wage Statement

27 Class from being able to effectively challenge information on their wage -

28 statements; and/or
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b. The difficulty and expense of filing and maintaining this lawsuit, and the 

discovery required to collect and analyze the very information that California 

law requires. 

78. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(e), the members of the Independent Wage 

Statement Class are entitledto fifty dollars ($50.00) per employee for the initial pay period in 

which a violation hereunder occurs and one hundred dollars ($100.00) per employee for each 

Violation in a subsequent pay period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of four thousand dollars 

($4,000.00). 

79. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(g), the currently—employed members of the 

Independent Wage Statement Class are entitled to injunctive relief to ensure Defendants’ 

compliance with Labor Code §226. 

80. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(e) and/or §226(g), the members of the Independent 

Wage Statement Class are also entitled to an award of costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

DERIVATIVE FAILURE TO TIMELY 

FURNISH ACCURATE ITEMIZED WAGE STATEMENTS 

(On Behalf of the Derivative Wage Statement Class) 

81. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the 

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

82. Labor Code §226(a) states in pertinent part: “Every employer shall, semimonthly 

or at the time of each payment of wages, furnish each of his or her employees, either as a 

detachable part of the check, draft, or voucher paying the employee’s wages, or separately when 

wages are paid by personal check or cash, an accurate itemized statement in writing showing (1) 

gross wages earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee... (4) all deductions... (5) net wages 

earned, (6) the inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is paid... (8) the name and 

address of the legal entity that is the employer, and (9) all applicable hourly rates in effect during 

each the pay period and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate by the 
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b. The difficulty and expense of filing and maintaining this lawsuit, and the

discovery required to collect and analyze the very information that California

law requires.

78. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(e), the members of the Independent Wage

Statement Class are entitledto fifiy dollars ($50.00) per employee for the initial pay period in

which a Violation hereunder occurs and one hundred dollars ($100.00) per employee for each

violation in a subsequent pay period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of four thousand dollars

($4,000.00).

79. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(g), the currently—employed members of the

Independent Wage Statement Class are entitled to injunctive relief to ensure Defendants’

compliance with Labor Code §226.

80. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(e) and/or §226(g), the members of the Independent

Wage Statement Class are also entitled to an award of costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

DERIVATIVE FAILURE TO THVIELY

FURNISH ACCURATE ITEMIZEDWAGE STATEMENTS

(On Behalf of the Derivative Wage Statement Class)

81. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set

forth herein.

82. Labor Code §226(a) states in pertinent part: “Every employer shall, semirnonthly

or at the time of each payment ofwages, filmish each ofhis or her employees, either as a

detachable part of the check, draft, or voucher paying the employee’s wages, or separately when

wages are paid by personal check or cash, an accurate itemized statement in writing showing (1)

gross wages earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee... (4) all deductions... (5) net wages

earned, (6) the inclusive dates of the period for which the employee is paid. . . (8) the name and

address of the legal entity that is the employer, and (9) all applicable hourly rates in effect during

each the pay period and the corresponding number ofhours worked at each hourly rate by the
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83. Further, the IWC Wage Orders §7(A) states in pertinent part: “(A) Every 

employer shall keep accurate information with respect to each employee including the following: 

(3) Time records showing when the employee begins and ends each work period. Meal periods, 

split shift intervals, and total daily hours worked shall also be recorded. . .(5) Total hours worked 

in the payroll period and applicable rates of pay. . . .” 

84. Therefore, pursuant to Labor Code §226(a) and the IWC Wage Orders §7(A), 

California employers are required to maintain accurate records pertaining to the total hours 

worked for Defendants by the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class, including but 

not limited to, beginning and ending of each work period, meal period and split shift interval, the 

total daily hours worked, and the total hours worked per pay period and applicable rates of pay. 

85. As a pattern and practice, in Violation of Labor Code §226(a) and the IWC Wage 

M §7(A), Defendants did not and still do not fumish each of the members of the Derivative 

Wage Statement Class with an accurate itemized statement in writing showing (1) gross wages 

earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee, (3) all deductions, (4) net wages earned and/or 

(5) all applicable hourly rates in effect during each respective pay period and the corresponding 

number of hours worked at each hourly rate by each respective individual. 

86. As set forth herein in prior causes of action, Defendants allegedly failed to pay the 

members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class all wages due and owing. 

87. As a derivative result of this failure to pay wages and as a pattern and practice in 

violation of Labor Code §226(a) and the IW C Wage Orders §7(A), Defendants did not and do 

not maintain accurate records pertaining to the total hours worked for Defendants by the 

members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class, including but not limited to, beginning and 

ending of each work period, meal period interval, total daily hours worked, total hours worked 

per pay period, and the applicable rates of pay. 

88. As of January 1, 2013, SB 1255 amended Labor Code §226 to clarify that an 

employee suffers injury if the employer fails to provide accurate and complete information as 

required by any one or more items listed in Labor Code §226(a)(1)—(9) and the employee cannot 

-21_ 
WAHIDI V. VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, et al. - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

\
O
O
O
Q
O
‘t
U
I
-
h
W
N
F
‘

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
I
—
‘P
—
‘t
—
‘r
—
ii
—
‘D
—
‘I
—
‘P
—
‘I
—
‘H

\
I
G
M
-
P
W
N
H
O
K
D
O
O
Q
Q
M
-
h
U
J
N
r
—
d
o

qmcoF
m'l'jm

ISSNNHUSAVENUE,
5500mm

1
'l‘fl;(3£)54$9100
FAX:(323)549-0|01

w

7’employee. . .. .

83. Further, the IWC Wage Orders §7(A) states in pertinent part: “(A) Every

employer shall keep accurate information with respect to each employee including the following:

(3) Time records showing when the employee begins and ends each work period. Meal periods,

split shift intervals, and total daily hours worked shall also be recorded. . .(5) Total hours worked

in the payroll period and applicable rates ofpay. . . .”

84. Therefore, pursuant to Labor Code §226(a) and the IWC Wage Orders §7(A),

California employers are required to maintain accurate records pertaining to the total hours

worked for Defendants by the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class, including but

not limited to, beginning and ending of each work period, meal period and split shift interval, the

total daily hours worked, and the total hours worked per pay period and applicable rates ofpay.

85. As a pattern and practice, in violation of Labor Code §226(a) and the IWC Wage

M§7(A), Defendants did not and still do not finish each of the members of the Derivative

Wage Statement Class with an accurate itemized statement in writing showing (1) gross wages

earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee, (3) all deductions, (4) net wages earned and/or

(5) all applicable hourly rates in effect during each respective pay period and the corresponding

number ofhours worked at each hourly rate by each respective individual.

86. As set forth herein in prior causes of action, Defendants allegedly failed to pay the

members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class all wages due and owing.

87. As a derivative result of this failure to pay wages and as a pattern and practice in

violation of Labor Code §226(a) and the IWC Wage Orders §7(A), Defendants did not and do

not maintain accurate records pertaining to the total hours worked for Defendants by the

members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class, including but not limited to, beginning and

ending of each work period,meal period interval, total daily hours worked, total hours worked

per pay period, and the applicable rates ofpay.

88. As of January 1, 2013, SB 1255 amended Labor Code §226 to clarify that an

employee suffers injury if the employer fails to provide accurate and complete information as

required by any one or more items listed in Labor Code §226(a)(1)—(9) and the employee cannot
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I promptly and easily ascertain requisite information without reference to other documents or 

2 information. 

3 89. Here, the members of Derivative Wage Statement Class suffered injury because, 

4 due to Defendants’ failure to pay all wages due and owing, Defendants derivatively failed to 

5 provide accurate and complete information as required by one or more items listed in La_lmr 

6 Co_de §226(a)(1)-(9)- 

7 90. In addition, the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class have suffered 

8 injury as a result of Defendants’ failure to maintain accurate records for the members of the 

9 Derivative Wage Statement Class in that the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class 

10 were not timely provided written accurate itemized statements showing all requisite information, 

11 including but not limited to total hours worked by the employee, net wages earned and all 

12 applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding number of hours 

13 worked at each hourly rate, in Violation of Labor Code §226 and the IWC Wage Orders §7(A), 

14 such that the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class were misled by Defendants as to 

15 the correct information regarding various items, including but not limited to total hours worked 

16 by the employee, net wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period 

17 and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate. 

18 91. 
. 

The actual injuries suffered by the members of the Derivative Wage Statement 

19 Class as a result of Defendants’ knowing and intentional failure to maintain accurate records for 

20 the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class include but are not limited to: 

21 a. Confusion over whether they received all wages owed them by Defendants; 

22 - b. The difficulty and expense of attempting to reconstruct time and pay records; 

23 c. Being forced to engage in mathematical computations to analyze whether 

24 Defendants’ wages in fact compensated for all hours worked; 

25‘ d. The inability to accurately calculate wage rates complicated by the fact that 

26 wage statement information required by Labor Code §226 is missing; 

27 e. That such practice prevents the members of the Derivative Wage Statement 

28 Class from being able to effectively challenge information on their wage 
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promptly and easily ascertain requisite information without reference to other documents or

information.

89. Here, the members ofDerivative Wage Statement Class suffered injury because,

due to Defendants’ failure to pay all wages due and owing, Defendants derivatively failed to

provide accurate and complete information as required by one or more items listed in La_lmr

Co_de §226(a)(1)-(9)-
90. In addition, the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class have suffered

injury as a result of Defendants’ failure to maintain accurate records for the members of the

Derivative Wage Statement Class in that the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class

were not timely provided written accurate itemized statements showing all requisite information,

including but not limited to total hours worked by the employee, net wages earned and all

applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period and the corresponding number of hours

worked at each hourly rate, in Violation of Labor Code §226 and the IWC Wage Orders §7(A),

such that the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class were misled by Defendants as to

the correct information regarding various items, including but not limited to total hours worked

by the employee, net wages earned and all applicable hourly rates in effect during the pay period

and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly rate.

91. ' The actual injuries suffered by the members of the Derivative Wage Statement

Class as a result of Defendants’ knowing and intentional failure to maintain accurate records for

the members of the Derivative Wage Statement Class include but are not limited to:

a. Confusion over whether they received all wages owed them by Defendants;

b. The difficulty and expense of attempting to reconstruct time and pay records;

c. Being forced to engage in mathematical computations to analyze whether

Defendants’ wages in fact compensated for all hours worked;

d. The inability to accurately calculate wage rates complicated by the fact that

wage statement information required by Labor Code §226 is missing;

e. That such practice prevents the members of the Derivative Wage Statement

Class from being able to effectively challenge information on their wage
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statements; and/or 

f. The difficulty and expense of filing and maintaining this lawsuit, and the 

discovery required to collect and analyze the very information that California 

law requires. 

92. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(e), the members of the Derivative Wage Statement 

Class are entitled to fifty dollars ($50.00) per employee for the initial pay period in which a 

violation hereunder occurs and one hundred dollars ($100.00) per employee for each violation in 

a subsequent pay period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of four thousand dollars 

($4,000.00). 

93. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(g), the currently—employed members of the 

Derivative Wage Statement Class are entitled to injunctive relief to ensure Defendants’ 

compliance with Labor Code §226. 

94. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(e) and/or §226(g), the members of the Derivative 

Wage Statement Class are also entitled to an award of costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

VIOLATIONS OF LABOR CODE §203 

(On Behalf of the LC 203 Class) 

(Against All Defendants) 

95. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the 

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

96. Labor Code §203 provides that if an employer willfully fails to pay, without 

abatement or reduction, in accordance with Labor Code §§201 and 202, any wages of an 

employee who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the employee shall continue at the same 

rate, for up to thirty (30) days from the due date thereof, until paid or until an action therefore is 

commenced.

I 

97. The members of the LC 203 Class are no longer employed by Defendants as they 

were either discharged from or quit Defendants’ employ. 
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statements; and/or

f. The difficulty and expense of filing and maintaining this lawsuit, and the

discovery required to collect and analyze the very information that California

law requires.

92. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(e), the members of the Derivative Wage Statement

Class are entitled to fifty dollars ($50.00) per employee for the initial pay period in which a

violation hereunder occurs and one hundred dollars ($100.00) per employee for each violation in

a subsequent pay period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of four thousand dollars

($4,000.00).

93. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(g), the currently-employed members of the

Derivative Wage Statement Class are entitled to injunctive relief to ensure Defendants’

compliance with Labor Code §226.

94. Pursuant to Labor Code §226(e) and/or §226(g), the members of the Derivative

Wage Statement Class are also entitled to an award of costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATIONS OF LABOR CODE §203

(On Behalf of the LC 203 Class)

(Against All Defendants)

95. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set

forth herein.

96. Labor Code §203 provides that if an employer willfully fails to pay, without

abatement or reduction, in accordance with Labor Code §§201 and 202, any wages of an

employee who is discharged or who quits, the wages of the employee shall continue at the same

rate, for up to thirty (30) days from the due date thereof, until paid or until an action therefore is

commenced. I

97. The members of the LC 203 Class are no longer employed by Defendants as they

were either discharged from or quit Defendants’ employ.
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98. Defendants had a consistent and uniform policy, practice and procedure of 

willfully failing to pay the earned wages of Defendants’ former employees, according to 

amendment or proof. 

99. Defendants willfully failed to pay the members of the LC 203 Class their entire 

wages due and owing at the time of their termination or within seventy-two (72) hours of their , 

resignation, and failed to pay those sums for up to thirty (30) days thereafter. 

100. Defendants’ willful failure to pay wages to the members of the LC 203 Class 

violates Labor Code §203 because Defendants knew or should have known wages were due to 

the members of the LC 203 Class, but Defendants failed to pay them. 

101. Thus, the members of the LC 203 Class are entitled to recovery pursuant to Libg 

Code §203. 

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

PENALTIES PURSUANT TO LABOR CODE §2699 

(On Behalf of the Aggrieved Employees) 

(Against Defendant Seton Medical Center and Does 1 to 100) 

102. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the 

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

103. Pursuant to Labor Code §2699(a) (which provides that any provision of the La_bm 

Code that provides for a civil penalty to be assessed and collected by the Labor and Workforce 

Development Agency (“LWDA”) (or any of its departments, divisions, commissions, board 

agencies or employees), such civil penalties may, as an alternative, be recovered through a civil 

action brought by an aggrieved employee on behalf of himself or herself and other current or 

former employees) and Labor Code §2699(t) (which establishes a civil penalty for violations of 

all Labor Code provisions except those for which a civil penalty is specifically provided), the 

aggrieved employees seek recovery of all applicable civil penalties, as follows: 

a. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §2699(f), for all violations of 

the Labor Code except for those for which a civil penalty is specifically 
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98. Defendants had a consistent and uniform policy, practice and procedure of

willfully failing to pay the earned wages ofDefendants’ former employees, according to

amendment or proof.

99. Defendants willfully failed to pay the members of the DC 203 Class their entire

wages due and owing at the time of their termination or within seventy-two (72) hours of their .

resignation, and failed to pay those sums for up to thirty (30) days thereafter.

100. Defendants’ willful failure to pay wages to the members of the LC 203 Class

violates Labor Code §203 because Defendants knew or should have known wages were due to

the members of the LC 203 Class, but Defendants failed to pay them.

101. Thus, the members of the LC 203 Class are entitled to recovery pursuant to Labg

Code §203.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

PENALTIES PURSUANT TO LABOR CODE §2699

(On Behalf of the Aggrieved Employees)

(Against Defendant Seton Medical Center and Does 1 to 100)

102. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set

forth herein.

103. Pursuant to Labor Code §2699(a) (which provides that any provision of them

Code that provides for a civil penalty to be assessed and collected by the Labor and Workforce

Development Agency (“LWDA”) (or any of its departments, divisions, commissions, board

agencies or employees), such civil penalties may, as an alternative, be recovered through a civil

action brought by an aggrieved employee on behalf ofhimself or herself and other current or

former employees) and Labor Code §2699(f) (which establishes a civil penalty for Violations of

all Labor Code provisions except those for which a civil penalty is specifically provided), the

aggrieved employees seek recovery of all applicable civil penalties, as follows:

a. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §2699(f), for all violations of

the Labor Code except for those for which a civil penalty is specifically
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1 provided, in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each aggrieved 

2 employee per pay period for the initial violation; and two hundred dollars 

3 ($200.00) for each aggrieved employee per pay period for each subsequent 

4 violation; and 

5 b. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §55 8 (in addition to and 

6 entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the m 
7 _C_gd_e), for violations of Labor Code §§1-556, in the amount of $50 for each 

8 underpaid aggrieved employee for each pay period the aggrieved employee 

9 was underpaid in addition to an amount sufficient to recover underpaid wages, 

10 and $100 for each subsequent violation for each underpaid employee for each 

11 pay period for which the employee was underpaid in addition to an amount 

12 sufficient to recover underpaid wages, with all wages recovered pursuant to 

13 Labor Code §5 58 provided to the aggrieved employees; 

14 c. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §1197.1 (in addition to and 

15 entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in them 
16 Co_de), for violations of Labor Code §§1194 and 1197, in the amount of $100 

17 for each underpaid aggrieved employee for each pay period the aggrieved 

18 employee was intentionally underpaid in addition to an amount sufficient to 

19 recover underpaid wages,.and $250 for each subsequent violation for each 

20 underpaid aggrieved employees regardless of whether the initial violation was 

21 intentionally committed in addition to an amount sufficient to recover 

22 underpaid wages, with all wages recovered pursuant to Labor Code §1197.1; 

23 d. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §210 (in addition to and 

24 entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the La_bor 

25 Co_de), (for each employee who is/was not paid wages in accordance with 

26 Labor Code §§201.3, 204, 204b, 204.1, 204.2, 205, 205.5 and 1197.5) in the 

27 amount of a civil penalty of $100 for each aggrieved employee per pay period 

28 for each initial violation, and $200 for each aggrieved employee per pay 

laggifiém _ 25 _ 
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provided, in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each aggrieved

employee per pay period for the initial violation; and two hundred dollars

($200.00) for each aggrieved employee per pay period for each subsequent

violation; and

. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §558 (in addition to and

entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in them

Cole), for violations of Labor Code §§1-556, in the amount of $50 for each

underpaid aggrieved employee for each pay period the aggrieved employee

was underpaid in addition to an amount sufficient to recover underpaid wages,

and $100 for each subsequent violation for each underpaid employee for each

pay period for which the employee was underpaid in addition to an amount

sufficient to recover underpaid wages, with all wages recovered pursuant to

Labor Code §558 provided to the aggrieved employees;

. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §1197.1 (in addition to and

entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the Labor

Code), for violations of Labor Code §§1194 and 1197, in the amount of $100

for each underpaid aggrieved employee for each pay period the aggrieved

employee was intentionally underpaid in addition to an amount sufficient .to

recover underpaid wages,.and $250 for each subsequent violation for each

underpaid aggrieved employees regardless ofwhether the initial violation was

intentionally committed in addition to an amount sufficient to recover

underpaid wages, with all wages recovered pursuant to Labor Code §1197.1;

. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §210 (in addition to and

entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the La_bor

Co_de), (for each employee who is/was not paid wages in accordance with

Labor Code §§201.3, 204, 204b, 204.1, 204.2, 205, 205.5 and 1197.5) in the

amount of a civil penalty of $100 for each aggrieved employee per pay period

for each initial violation, and $200 for each aggrieved employee per pay
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1 period for each subsequent violation; 

2 e. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §226.3 (in addition to and 

3 entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the Labor 

4 Code), for each Violation of Labor Code §226(a), in the amount of $250 for 

5 each aggrieved employee per pay period for each Violation and $1,000 for 

6 each aggrieved employee per pay period for each subsequent violation; 

7 f As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §§203 and/or 256 (in addition 

8 to and entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the 

9 Labor Code), for any aggrieved employee who was discharged or quit, and 

10 was not paid all earned wages at termination in accordance with Labor Code 

11 §§201, 201.1, 201.5, 202, and 205.5, in the amount ofa civil penalty of one 

12 day of pay, at the same rate, for each day that he or she was paid late, until 

13 payment was/is made, up to a maximum of thirty (30) days; and 

14 g. As applicable, any and all additional applicable civil penalties and sums as 

15 provided by the Labor Code and/or other relevant statutes. 

16 104. In addition, Plaintiffs seek and are entitled to seventy-five percent (75%) of all 

17 penalties obtained under Labor Code §2699 to be allocated to the LWDA, for education of 

18 employers and employees about their rights and responsibilities under the Labor Code, and 

19 twenty—five percent (25%) to the aggrieved employees. 

20 105. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.6 and CC §3287, these aggrieved employees seek 

21 recovery of pre-judgrnent interest on all amounts recovered herein. 

22 106. Further, Plaintiffs are entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs 

23 pursuant to Labor Code §§2699(g)( 1) and any other applicable statute. 

24 107. Labor Code §2699.3(a) states in pertinent part: “A civil action by an aggrieved 

25 employee pursuant to subdivision (a) or (t) of Section 2699 alleging a violation of any provision 

26 listed in Section 2699.5 shall commence only after the following requirements have been met: 

27 (1) (A) The aggrieved employee or representative shall give written notice by online filing with 

28 the Labor and Workforce Development Agency and by certified mail to the employer of the 

lssémAvmuE. _ 26 _ 
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period for each subsequent violation;

e. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §226.3 (in addition to and

entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the La_bor

Co_de), for each violation of Labor Code §226(a), in the amount of $250 for

each aggrieved employee per pay period for each violation and $1,000 for

each aggrieved employee per pay period for each subsequent violation;

f. As applicable, civil penalties under Labor Code §§203 and/or 256 (in addition

to and entirely independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the

Labor Code), for any aggrieved employee who was discharged or quit, and

was not paid all earned wages at termination in accordance with Labor Code

§§201, 201.1, 201.5, 202, and 205.5, in the amount ofa civil penalty of one

day ofpay, at the same rate, for each day that he or she was paid late, until

payment was/is made, up to a maximum of thirty (30) days; and

g. As applicable, any and all additional applicable civil penalties and sums as

provided by the Labor Code and/or other relevant statutes.

104. In addition, Plaintiffs seek and are entitled to seventy-five percent (75%) of all

penalties obtained under Labor Code §2699 to be allocated to the LWDA, for education of

employers and employees about their rights and responsibilities under the Labor Code, and

twenty-five percent (25%) to the aggrieved employees.

105. Pursuant to Labor Code §218.6 and 92 §3287, these aggrieved employees seek

recovery ofpre-judgment interest on all amounts recovered herein.

106. Further, Plaintiffs are entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs

pursuant to Labor Code §§2699(g)(1) and any other applicable statute.

107. Labor Code §2699.3(a) states in pertinent part: “A civil action by an aggrieved

employee pursuant to subdivision (a) or (t) of Section 2699 alleging a violation of any provision

listed in Section 2699.5 shall commence only after the following requirements have been met:

(1) (A) The aggrieved employee or representative shall give written notice by online filing with

the Labor and Workforce Development Agency and by certified mail to the employer of the
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specific provisions of this code alleged to have been violated, including the facts and theories to 

support the alleged violation.”
' 

108. Labor Code §2699.3(c)(l) states in pertinent part: “A civil action by an aggrieved 

employee pursuant to subdivision (a) or (t) of Section 2699 alleging a violation of any provision 

other than those listed in Section 2699.5 or Division 5 (commencing with Section 6300) shall 

commence only after the following requirements have been met: (1) (A) The aggrieved 

employee or representative shall give written notice by online filing with the Labor and 

Workforce Development Agency and by certified mail to the employer of the specific provisions 

of this code alleged to have been violated, including the facts and theories to support the alleged 

violation.” 

109. Here, Plaintiffs’ civil action alleges violations of provisions listed in Labor Code 

§2699.5 and violations of provisions other than those listed in Labor Code §2699.5. As such, 

Labor Code §2699.3(a) and §2699.3(c) apply to this action. 

110. On March 13, 2018, Plaintiffs complied with Labor Code §2699.3(a) and La_bor 

Co_de §2699.3(c) in that Plaintiffs gave written notice by online filing with the LWDA and by 

certified mail to Defendants of the specific provisions of the Labor Code alleged to have been 

violated, including the facts and theories to support the alleged violations. Attached hereto as 

Exhibit “1” is Plaintiffs’ LWDA letter. 

lll. Labor Code §2699.3(a) further states in pertinent part: “(2)(A) The agency shall 

notify the employer and the aggrieved employee or representative by certified mail that it does 

not intend to investigate the alleged violation within 60 calendar days of the postmark date of the 

notice received pursuant to paragraph (1). Upon receipt of that notice or if no notice is provided 

within 65 calendar days of the postmark date of the notice given pursuant to paragraph (1), the 

aggrieved employee may commence a civil action pursuant to Section 2699.” 

112. As of May 17, 2018 (65 calendar days after Plaintiffs’ March 13, 2018 LWDA 

letter was filed online), Plaintiffs had not received any notification that the LWDA intended to 

investigate the alleged violations. As such, Plaintiffs have complied with Labor Code §2699.3(a) 

and have been given authorization therefrom to commence a civil action which includes a cause 
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specific provisions of this code alleged to have been violated, including the facts and theories to

support the alleged violation.” '

108. Labor Code §2699.3(c)(1) states in pertinent part: “A civil action by an aggrieved

employee pursuant to subdivision (a) or (f) of Section 2699 alleging a violation of any provision

other than those listed in Section 2699.5 or Division 5 (commencing with Section 6300) shall

commence only after the following requirements have been met: (1) (A) The aggrieved

employee or representative shall give written notice by online filing with the Labor and

Workforce Development Agency and by certified mail to the employer of the specific provisions

of this code alleged to have been violated, including the facts and theories to support the alleged

violation.”

109. Here, Plaintiffs’ civil action alleges violations ofprovisions listed in Labor Code

§2699.5 and violations ofprovisions other than those listed in Labor Code §2699.5. As such,

Labor Code §2699.3(a) and §2699.3(c) apply to this action.

110. On March 13, 2018, Plaintiffs complied with Labor Code §2699.3(a) and La_bor

Co_de §2699.3(c) in that Plaintiffs gave written notice by online filing with the LWDA and by

certified mail to Defendants of the specific provisions of the Labor Code alleged to have been

violated, including the facts and theories to support the alleged violations. Attached hereto as

Exhibit “1” is Plaintiffs’ LWDA letter.

111. Labor Code §2699.3(a) further states in pertinent part: “(2)(A) The agency shall

notify the employer and the aggrieved employee or representative by certified mail that it does

not intend to investigate the alleged violation within 60 calendar days of the postmark date of the

notice received pursuant to paragraph (1). Upon receipt of that notice or if no notice is provided

within 65 calendar days of the postmark date of the notice given pursuant to paragraph (1), the

aggrieved employee may commence a civil action pursuant to Section 2699.”

112. As ofMay 17, 2018 (65 calendar days after Plaintiffs’ March 13, 2018 LWDA

letter was filed online), Plaintiffs had not received any notification that the LWDA intended to

investigate the alleged violations. As such, Plaintiffs have complied with Labor Code §2699.3(a)

and have been given authorization therefrom to commence a civil action which includes a cause

-27-
WAHIDI V. VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, et al. - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

Exhibit A, page 51

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Doc 1914    Filed 03/26/19    Entered 03/26/19 18:52:06    Desc
 Main Document      Page 52 of 81



10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Fwazrmwm 
E w «)M 

of action pursuant to Labor Code §2699. 

113. Further, as of March 15, 2018 (33 calendar days after Plaintiffs’ March 13, 2018 

LWDA letter was mailed to Defendants via certified mail), Plaintiffs have not received from 

Defendants written notice by certified mail that the alleged violations have been cured, including 

a description of actions taken. As such, Plaintiffs have complied with Labor Code §2699.3(c) 

and have been given authorization therefrom to commence a civil action which includes a cause 

of action pursuant to Labor Code §2699. 

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES 

(On Behalf of the 17200 Class) 

(Against All Defendants) 

114. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the 

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

115. B_&_I£ §17200 provides in pertinent part “. . . [U]nfair competition shall mean and 

include any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act. . .”. 

116. BE §17205 provides that unless otherwise expressly provided, the remedies or 

penalties provided for unfair competition “are cumulative to each other and to the remedies or 

penalties available under all other laws of this state.” 

117. ]_3&_PC_ §17204 provides that an action for any relief from unfair competition may 

be prosecuted by any person who has suffered injury in fact and has lost money or property as a 

result of such unfair competition. 

118. Defendants have engaged in unlawfirl, unfair and fraudulent business acts or 

practices prohibited by m §17200, including those set forth in the preceding and foregoing 

paragraphs of the complaint, thereby depriving the members of the 17200 Class of the minimum 

working standards and conditions due to them under the Labor Code and/or the IWC Wage 

M, as specifically described herein. 

/// 

-23- 
WAHIDI V. VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, et al. - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

\
O
O
O
Q
O
‘i
U
I
-
h
U
J
N
i—
t

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
r
—
t
r
—
lr
—
I
r
—
A
r
—
n
r
—
t
y
—
A
r
—
A
r
—
A
r
—
a

O
N
M
-
P
U
’
N
F
—
‘
O
K
D
W
Q
O
N
U
I
-
P
‘
W
N
H
O

336l
m:(313)54991m
Fwazmamm
HARM/«mean

of action pursuant to Labor Code §2699.

113. Further, as ofMarch 15, 2018 (33 calendar days after Plaintiffs’ March 13, 2018

LWDA letter was mailed to Defendants via certified mail), Plaintiffs have not received from

Defendants written notice by certified mail that the alleged violations have been cured, including

a description of actions taken. As such, Plaintiffs have complied with Labor Code §2699.3(c)

and have been given authorization therefrom to commence a civil action which includes a cause

of action pursuant to Labor Code §2699.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES

(On Behalf of the 17200 Class)

(Against All Defendants)

114. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege each and every one of the

allegations contained in the preceding and foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set

forth herein.

115. B_&_P_C_ §17200 provides in pertinent part “. . . [U]nfair competition shall mean and

include any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act. . .”.

116. BE §17205 provides that unless otherwise expressly provided, the remedies or

penalties provided for unfair competition “are cumulative to each other and to the remedies or

penalties available under all other laws of this sta .”

117. BE; §17204 provides that an action for any relief fiom unfair competition may

be prosecuted by any person who has suffered injury in fact and has lost money or property as a

result of such unfair competition.

118. Defendants have engaged in unlawful, unfair and fraudulent business acts or

practices prohibited by B&PC §17200, including those set forth in the preceding and foregoing

paragraphs of the complaint, thereby depriving the members of the 17200 Class of the minimum

working standards and conditions due to them under the Labor Code and/or the IWC Wage

Orders, as specifically described herein.

///
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119. Defendants have engaged in unfair business practices in California by practicing, 

employing and utilizing the employment practices outlined in the preceding paragraphs, 

specifically, by requiring employees to perform the labor services complained of herein without 

the requisite compensation. 

120. Defendants’ use of such practices constitutes an unfair business practice, unfair 

competition and provides an unfair advantage over Defendants’ competitors. 

121. Plaintiffs have suffered injury in fact and have lost money or property as a result 

of such unfair competition. 

122. Plaintiffs seek full restitution from Defendants, as necessary and according to 

proof, to restore any and all monies withheld, acquired and/or converted by Defendants by means 

of the unfair practices complained of herein. 

123. Further, if Defendants are not enjoined from the conduct set forth above, 

Defendants will continue to practice, employ and utilize the employment practices outlined in the 

preceding paragraphs. 

124. Therefore, Plaintiffs request that the Court issue a preliminary and permanent 

injunction prohibiting Defendants from engaging in the foregoing conduct. 

125. Plaintiffs seek the appointment of a receiver, as necessary, to establish the total 

monetary relief sought from Defendants. 

VI. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray: 

a. That the Court issue an Order certifying the Classes herein, appointing all named 

Plaintiffs as representative of all others similarly situated, and appointing all law firms 

representing all named Plaintiffs as counsel for the members of the Classes; 

As to the First Cause of Action for Failure to Pay A11 Wages Due To Illegal Rounding: 

b. For recovery of the unpaid balance of the full amount of the straight time 

compensation due and owing, according to proof; 

/// 
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1 119. Defendants have engaged in unfair business practices in California by practicing,

2 employing and utilizing the employment practices outlined in the preceding paragraphs,

3 specifically, by requiring employees to perform the labor services complained ofherein without

the requisite compensation.

120. Defendants’ use of such practices constitutes an unfair business practice, unfair

competition and provides an unfair advantage over Defendants’ competitors.

121. Plaintiffs have suffered injury in fact and have lost money or property as a result

of such unfair competition.
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122. Plaintiffs seek full restitution from Defendants, as necessary and according to

10 proof, to restore any and all monies withheld, acquired and/or converted by Defendants by means

11 of the unfair practices complained ofherein.

12 123. Further, ifDefendants are not enjoined from the conduct set forth above,

13 Defendants will continue to practice, employ and utilize the employment practices outlined in the

14 preceding paragraphs.

15 124. Therefore, Plaintiffs request that the Court issue a preliminary and permanent

16 injunction prohibiting Defendants from engaging in the foregoing conduct.

17 125. Plaintiffs seek the appointment of a receiver, as necessary, to establish the total

18 monetary relief sought from Defendants.

19 VI.

20 PRAYER FORRELIEF

21 WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray:

22 a. That the Court issue an Order certifying the Classes herein, appointing all named

23 Plaintiffs as representative of all others similarly situated, and appointing all law firms

24 representing all named Plaintiffs as counsel for the members of the Classes;

25 As to the First Cause ofAction for Failure to Pay A11 Wages Due To Illegal Rounflg:

26 b. For recovery of the unpaid balance of the full amount of the straight time

27 compensation due and owing, according to proof;

28 ///
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c. For liquidated damages on the straight-time portion of uncompensated hours of 

work (not including the overtime portion thereof), as authorized by Labor Code §1194.2(a); 

d. For recovery of the unpaid balance of the full amount of overtime compensation 

due and owing, calculated at the appropriate rate and according to proof; 

e. For pre—judgment interest as allowed by Labor Code §218.6, Labor Code 

§1194(a) and C_C_ §3287; 

f. For an award of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Labor Code 

§218.5 and/or Labor Code §1194(a); 

As to the Second Cause of Action for Failure to Provide Meal Periods: 

g. For one (1) hour of pay at the regular rate of compensation for each member of 

the Meal Period Class for each workday that a meal or rest period was not provided; 

h. For pre—judgment interest as authorized by Labor Code §218.6 and Q §3287; 

As to the Third Cause of Action for Failure to Authorize and Permit Paid Rest Periods: 

i. For one (1) hour of pay at the regular rate of compensation for each member of 

the Rest Period Class for each workday that a meal or rest period was not provided; 

j. For pre-judgment interest as authorized by Labor Code §218.6 and QC §3287; 

As to the Fourth Cause of Action for Independent Failure to Timely Furnish Accurate Itemized 

Wage Statements: 

k: For recovery as authorized by Labor Code §226(e); 

1. For an award of costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to Labor Code 

§226(e) and/or §226(g); 

As to the Fifth Cause of Action for Derivative Failure to Timely Furnish Accurate Itemized 

Wave Statements: 

m. For recovery as authorized by Labor Code §226(e); 

n. For an award of costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to Labor Code 

§226(e) and/or §226(g); 

As to the Sixth Cause of Action for Violations of Labor Code 6203: 

o. For recovery as authorized by Labor Code §203; 
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c. For liquidated damages on the straight—time portion ofuncompensated hours of

work (not including the overtime portion thereof), as authorized by Labor Code §ll94.2(a);

d. For recovery of the unpaid balance of the fiill amount of overtime compensation

due and owing, calculated at the appropriate rate and according to proof;

e. For pre—judgment interest as allowed by Labor Code §218.6, Labor Code

§ll94(a) and QC §3287;

f. For an award of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to Labor Code

§218.5 and/or Labor Code §1194(a);

As to the Second Cause ofAction for Failure to Provide Meal Periods:

g. For one (1) hour ofpay at the regular rate of compensation for each member of

the Meal Period Class for each workday that a meal or rest period was not provided;

h. For pre-judgment interest as authorized by Labor Code §218.6 and SE §3287;

As to the Third Cause ofAction for Failure to Authorize and Permit Paid Rest Periods:

i. For one (1) hour ofpay at the regular rate of compensation for each member of

the Rest Period Class for each workday that a meal or rest period was not provided;

j. For pre-judgment interest as authorized by Labor Code §218.6 and QC §3287;

As to the Fourth Cause ofAction for Independent Failure to Timelv Furnish Accurate Itemized

Wage Statements:

k: For recovery as authorized by Labor Code §226(e);

1. For an award of costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to Labor Code

§226(e) and/or §226(g); I
As to the Fifih Cause ofAction for Derivative Failure to Timelv Furnish Accurate Itemized

Wage Statements:

m. For recovery as authorized by Labor Code §226(e);

n. For an award of costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to Labor Code

§226(e) and/or §226(g);

As to the Sixth Cause ofAction for Violations of Labor Code §203:

o. For recovery as authorized by Labor Code §203;

-30-
WAHIDI V. VERITY HEALTH SYSTEM, et a1. - FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

Exhibit A, page 54

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Doc 1914    Filed 03/26/19    Entered 03/26/19 18:52:06    Desc
 Main Document      Page 55 of 81



4:. 

\OOO\]O\U‘I 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

LAW OFFICE OF 

KvNTfiARNE 
1.5 PONHLS AVfll'UE. 5mm [06c 

W336] 
m:(323)s499100 
FAX:(37J)549-0|0I Emu 

As to the Seventh Cause of Action for Penalties Pursuant to Labor Code (52699; 

p. For civil penalties pursuant to Labor Code §2699(t), in addition to and entirely 

independent and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code and for Labor Code violations 

without a specific civil penalty, in the amount of $100 for each aggrieved employee per pay 

period for each violation, and $200 for each aggrieved employee per pay period for each 

subsequent violation; 

q. For civil penalties pursuant to Labor Code §558, in addition to and entirely 

independent and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code, as follows: 

i For any initial violation, fifty dollars ($50) for each aggrieved underpaid 

employee for each pay period for which the employee was underpaid in 

addition to an amount which is sufficient to recover unpaid wages; 

ii. For each subsequent violation, one hundred dollars ($100) for each aggrieved 

underpaid employee for each pay period for which the employee was 

underpaid in addition to an amount which is sufficient to recover unpaid 

wages; and 

iii. For all unpaid wages, to be paid to the aggrieved employees; 

I. For civil penalties under Labor Code §l 197.1 (in addition to and entirely 

independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the Labor Code), for each Violation of 

Labor Code §ll97, in the amount of $100 for each aggrieved employee per pay period for each 

violation and $250 for each aggrieved employee per pay period for each subsequent violation; 

s. For civil penalties under Labor Code §210, in addition to and entirely independent 

and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code, in the amount of $100 for each aggrieved 

employee per pay period for each violation, and $200 for each aggrieVed employee per pay 

period for each subsequent violation; 

t. For civil penalties per Labor Code §226.3, in addition to and entirely independent 

and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code, in the amount of $250 for each aggrieved 

employee per pay period for each violation, and $1,000 for each aggrieved employee per pay 

period for each subsequent violation; 
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As to the Seventh Cause ofAction for Penalties Pursuant to Labor Code (32699;

p. For civil penalties pursuant to Labor Code §2699(f), in addition to and entirely

independent and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code and for Labor Code violations

without a specific civil penalty, in the amount of $100 for each aggrieved employee per pay

period for each violation, and $200 for each aggrieved employee per pay period for each

subsequent violation;

q. For civil penalties pursuant to Labor Code §558, in addition to and entirely

independent and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code, as follows:

i For any initial violation, fifty dollars ($50) for each aggrieved underpaid

employee for each pay period for which the employee was underpaid in

addition to an amount which is sufficient to recover unpaid wages;

ii. For each subsequent violation, one hundred dollars ($100) for each aggrieved

underpaid employee for each pay period for which the employee was

underpaid in addition to an amount which is sufficient to recover unpaid

wages; and

iii. For all unpaid wages, to be paid to the aggrieved employees;

r. For civil penalties under Labor Code §1197.1 (in addition to and entirely

independent and apart from any other penalty provided in the Labor Code), for each violation of

Labor Code §1197, in the amount of $100 for each aggrieved employee per pay period for each

violation and $250 for each aggrieved employee per pay period for each subsequent violation;

s. For civil penalties under Labor Code §210, in addition to and entirely independent

and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code, in the amount of $100 for each aggrieved

employee per pay period for each violation, and $200 for each aggrieVed employee per pay

period for each subsequent violation;

t. For civil penalties per Labor Code §226.3, in addition to and entirely independent

and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code, in the amount of $250 for each aggrieved

employee per pay period for each violation, and $1,000 for each aggrieved employee per pay

period for each subsequent violation;
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11. For civil penalties per Labor Code §§203 and/or 256, in addition to and entirely 

independent and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code, in the amount of one day of pay, 

at the same rate, for each day that an aggrieved employee was paid late, at the time of 

termination, until payment was/is made, up to a maximum of thirty (30) days; 

V. For pre-judgment interest on all amounts recovered herein pursuant to M 
Co_de §218.6, Labor Code §l 194(a) and/or E §3287; 

w. For reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred pursuant to Labor Code 

§§2699(g)(1) and any other applicable statute; and 

x. For such relief as this Court may‘deem just and proper, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs incurred; 

As to the Eighth Cause of Action for Unfair Business Practices: 

y. For an accounting, under administration of Plaintiffs and/or the receiver and 

subject to Court review, to determine the amount to be returned by Defendants, and the amounts 

to be refunded to members of the Classes who are owed monies by Defendants; 

2. For an Order requiring Defendants to identify each of the members of the Classes 

by name, home address, home telephone number and, if available, email address; 

aa. For an Order requiring Defendants to make full restitution and payment pursuant 

to California law; 

bb. For an Order for a preliminary and/or permanent injunction prohibiting 

Defendants from engaging in the acts complained of herein;
1 

cc. For the creation of an administrative process wherein each injured member of the 

Classes may submit a claim in order to receive his/her money; 

dd. For all other appropriate injunctive, declaratory and equitable relief; 

ee. For interest to the extent permitted by law; 

ff. For an award of attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in the inVestigation, filing and 

prosecution of this action pursuant to CCP §1021.5, B&PC §l7200, et seq., Labor Code §1194 

and/or any other applicable provision of law;

M 
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u. For civil penalties per Labor Code §§203 and/or 256, in addition to and entirely

independent and apart from other penalties in the Labor Code, in the amount of one day ofpay,

at the same rate, for each day that an aggrieved employee was paid late, at the time of

termination, until payment was/is made, up to a maximum of thirty (30) days;

v. For pre-judgment interest on all amounts recovered herein pursuant toM

Co_de §218.6, Labor Code §1194(a) and/orQ §3287;

w. For reasonable attomeys’ fees and costs incurred pursuant to Labor Code

§§2699(g)(1) and any other applicable statute; and

x. For such relief as this Court may-deem just and proper, including reasonable

attorneys’ fees and costs incurred;

As to the Eighth Cause ofAction for Unfair Business Practices:

y. For an accounting, under administration ofPlaintiffs and/or the receiver and

subject to Court review, to determine the amount to be returned by Defendants, and the amounts

to be refunded to members of the Classes who are owed monies by Defendants;

2. For an Order requiring Defendants to identify each of the members of the Classes

by name, home address, home telephone number and, if available, email address;

aa. For an Order requiring Defendants to make full restitution and payment pursuant

to California law;

bb. For an Order for a preliminary and/or permanent injunction prohibiting

Defendants from engaging in the acts complained of herein;

) cc. For the creation of an administrative process wherein each injured member of the

Classes may submit a claim in order to receive his/her money;

dd. For all other appropriate injunctive, declaratory and equitable relief;

ee. For interest to the extent permitted by law;

ff. For an award of attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in the inVestigation, filing and

prosecution of this action pursuant to CCP §1021.5, B&PC §17200, et seq., Labor Code §1194

and/or any other applicable provision of law;

M
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As to All Causes of Action: 

gg. For such relief as this Court may deem just and proper, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs incurred. 

VII. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiffs hereby demand trial of their claims by jury to the extent authorized by law. 

Dated: June 25, 2018 - LAW OFFICES OF KEVIN T. BARNES 

‘ """Ke‘vin‘T‘. Barnes,‘Esq 
., 

Gregg Lander, Esq. 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 
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IIAw‘OFFIc on 

I KEVIN T. BARNES 
. . . 

KEVIN 'l‘._ BARNES ‘ 
A Professiéittal Law Corporation 

GREGG LANDER 
5670 WILSIIIRE BQULBVARD, SUITE I460 I— 

S 

w» Ios ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90036 5664 . 

ma M 526613 
or COUNSEL: 

JOSEPI-IANIONE‘LILI TELEPHONF: (323) 549 9100 .. 
“‘- 

Toll-Free: (877) 309-3577 / FAX: (323) 549- 0101' Bames@khamcs,qom 

March 1-3, 201,8 

VIA ELECIRoNIC'MA‘I‘LIsJS filing fee to follow by mail) 

PAGA Administrator 
California Labor and Workforce Development Agency 
PAGAfIlings@dir. ca. gov 

Seton MedIcal Center and Verity Health System of @Ilifm nia ‘1t (hereafiei cellectwclv, the 

NOTICE OFLABORICODE VIOLATIONS PURSUANT TO BAHORICOIIEI|§2699L3 

T9? PAGA Administrat, California LabOr and Workforce Development Agency and, the Employer 

Ero'ms: 'Wahe‘ed Wahidi (the “Employee”.), Who was subjected‘to the wage andihour practices set forth 
belgw 

‘ I I I l 

The Employee by way of the above- named QQIIHSQL subnnts this Notice, pursuant to and In comp iance 
with the re merits of Califernia Labor Code §2699 3(a)/(c) and alleges the facts and} thecries to suppert the 
alleged vxolat its as f6116Ws: 

‘ 

theillmplover employed the Employee and all otheummIlarlysituated 
During this time period the hmployer utIlIzcdxccns sfent 

251,1 «all other Slt‘l‘lllfil‘lfi/«Slflldted aggneved employees, as 

er utrhzc“ «a time roundmg pdiicy that ignored employees? actual: time punches and 
he ployee and flier similarly sxtuated aggrreved employees would typically 

en worked 4m period time past their scheduled shift end. However, because of the 
lie 3;; 

‘ 

l I ee Were requucd to work WIthout pay; As such this policy 
‘ 

. ly, and/91: wciked late) resulted In a disprepmtlonatc 
e and as such, is not fair and neutral on its face and used: 
time in failure to compensate for all time actually

‘ 

, §§510,1194‘, 1194. 2,11971198 and the applicable 
{titles pursuant to Labor Code §§2699(f) and/or 558 

S'écOIi'd- lli’e; Emplover rains totlmely provide all legally compliant meal breaks (including second meal 
. 

he H d all one; mIIarly Situated aggrieved employees, as the Employee and all other " ' 

did not always vet full thirty minute uninterrupted meal breaks within 
er: and all: other Similarly sItuated aggrieved employees 

,1 ided ail legally compliant Inenl breaks Further, the 
l, (ed Ingloyees sometimes worked over ten hours but were not 

g 
" 

‘bieaks The mlcycr did not pay always pay a meal period penalty 
for these VIolatlons As such the Employer violated Labor Code §§226. 7, 512 and 516 and the applicable 
Industrial Wage Order, 1111, and o'wes penalties pursuant to Labor (Bode §§2699(I) and/or 558.

' 

‘Ipatc In a “huddle“ meetmu to diSCIISs the sliift aSSIgnmcnts .1 

A_¢,.mao»~‘, 

‘35: 

91' 

-

-

e 

". 

.y‘.‘ 
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no.
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Iw‘OFrIeBs or,
, KEVIN T. BARNES . . . .
KEVIN 'l‘._l.1ARNES ‘ A Professitinai Law Corporation ‘
GREGG LANDER 5670 WILSIIIREBOULEVARD, SUITE I460 -,_ ‘~

‘ m- I‘os ANGELES CALIFORNIA 90036 5664 . kzamzcofi
OF COUNSEL:

JOSEPH AN'rONEILLi TELEPHONE (323) 549 9100- .. fl-
Toll-Free: (877) 309-‘3577- / FAX (323) 549-0101 Bames@.kb_amcs,eom

March 13, 20.18

PAQA Administrator
California Labor and Workforce Development Agency "g
PAGAtilings@dir.ca.gov 3

NOTICE orgmnotmomiVIOLATIONS PURSUANT To IIABGR‘éeWOII‘II§,§2699;3
IQ? PAGA Administratqr, California Labc‘n- andWorkforce Development Agency and the Employer

1 13mins: Waheed Wahidi (the “Enipldyee”.), Who was subjected‘to the wage andihour- practices set forth
be 9w ‘ ' ' ' ‘

The Employee by way of the above-named counsel, subrmts this Notice, pursuant to and In compliance
with the re, menteet‘ California Labor Code ;§2699 3(a)/(c), and alleges the facts and theories to support the
' he as o oWs:

” ' t ‘ the Employer employed the, Employee and ail other Similarly situated
s13 this timeperlod the:hmployet utilized conSIstentP

p , _ ,~.,9’"3:.;B28 rtii g‘the Employee an ,5, other Simtial‘iSItuatfid aggneved employees, as1‘bone
follows.

6' Employer utIlIzed a‘ time roundIIIg policy that ignored employees’ actual: time punchee and
.ti ,5 pidyeeaitd; ther similarly situated aggrieved employeeswould typically
' ‘ " ' ‘ ' ’ ate in a “huddle”:meeting/to disease the shift asmgmnents ..

~ timer-past their scheduled Shifi. end. However, because of the 3
pl ,. , ,ygere requiI ed: to Work without pay; As such, this policy 2;
anwedearly. and/915 Ivoiked late) resulted In a dISpropoItIonate

pl, ed ft ‘and as such, is not fair and neutral on its face and used:
“ [lime in failure to compensate for all time actually ‘

' §§3510,11941194.2,11971198 and the applicable
alties pursuant to Labor Code §§2699(f) and/or 558.

,. m,

-
m
ew
-«
cu
».

vs
:

.3
2
«w
e.

..Stipend the Employer failed totuncly proxiide all legally compliant meal breaks (including second meal
all tithe; mIiarly Situated aggrieved employees, as the Employee and all other

’0 e did not; always set full thirty minute uninterrupted meal breaks within
1 and“ 311:other Similarly sItuated aggrieved employees
tried a1! legaliy compliant Ineal breaks Further, the

, H “,3got}; Ied mployees sometimes worked over ten hours but were not
prom‘ded‘all l in " ’ bieaks VEmpieyer did not pay always pay a meal period penalty......
for these violations. As such, the Employer violatedM1152 §§226.7, 512 and 516 and the applicable
industrial Wage Order, 1111, and o'wes penalties pursuant to Labor code §§2699(i) and/or 558. " "
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.PAGA Administrator
‘ 

Re: Seton Medical Center, et‘al. 
March 13, 2018 
Page 2 

“third? the: tempera-tense “to’provlitie theiEm/pylayeeymidgal[miter similafilysitfl‘ated Taggfiexéeciiemplbyees 
with paidgjx: tedkggas thejeximioyeerana‘1a’tll Gilletfiim y'j‘siumte g‘giieyeeempley 

‘ 
inner " ' ‘

. 

full ten'minut’ezurtinjtfepmpfedres'tibizealt’si‘WithinTthe fil’ShfiW‘jiTi‘iQfil‘SiO‘ lieir‘sliifieigffiiajfir Actiomh .1,“ ‘ 

"sashsubsequentfeurgheu‘rsuwmkedAthereafiewnamaj‘ Efraaiflonthere Aszsu‘cmthe‘tim'Ieyee=an‘d;'al at]; 
similarly .. tiledaggrievedempleyees'Wfirfiifldtelw: siprovjded'tegaty'eompliantaest -r ks; 3171i 

"" 
,3; 

did not pageanest period‘penaltygfg‘man'y'pf‘tfiegs'etvielatlens.“As sueligftiiefimpldyer‘viblated,t,halie}i3(3odeg§2216.7 
and thefapplicable”Industrial Wage Order, 1l12‘(‘A)/(B), and owes rest period v'i/a'g'es‘and penalties pursuant'to- 
;L§aligr"Code§§§269,9(t) and/ornSSS.

' 

Feurtli, regarding wage:‘§tatement§; 
Order, tli‘esl‘r‘iplpyer is requi’rfi'ed to- in‘cli‘l 

Emploxe r

‘ 

.Iemployee“ 
in: " 

LaborCod 

(pursuant to ‘Lalbo'r‘Cede;§226(a)_and‘the‘ appliCable IndustrialWa‘ge 
K 

. errata information on an employeefs wage statement; Here, the 
{l«rimpmpetixvage'stfltentEn1313tdi~th ,Em“ “twee-and:allitstli‘egsinjilarIy-if‘siteated aggrieved 

. musethesemplejyegr‘wsmage'smtemems; i ,iietgalway‘stciéntaihjthe‘eoffeét;iiiféi‘iiiati‘é'h’fe‘g‘fiardiiig 
‘ 

Assnclitgtttejfinjploye‘r: independently trio‘IatedglgéiBerGétte‘§226,;<afidsowes:penalties pi‘itsuah't tor 
2699§Q¢andlms22€3l 

‘ ‘ " ' ‘ ‘ 

Muslim regarding wagetstatehments, and in addition to the alleged independent violations of Labor 
Code _§226 above; pursuant to handmade §226 and the applicable Industrial Wage Order, the Employer: is 
required totinclude on a‘payst‘ub Sikh-information as all hours-worked, the hourly rate of “pay, and the ratei‘of 
pay‘for overtimeand double time work. Here, because of the Employer’s illegal wage andlhp‘ur pblibiesas "set 
forth, above, all wages earned weren‘ot reflected onfithe wage statements provided by thefimployer tothe‘ 
tfimplfisieesand all men‘similatlyrntyaiéfi faggfii‘éEV”dfetnployees,_ and the Employer issued improper Wage 
statemén‘tsAs s‘ut‘c’hgflre,Empieyerrédepivatitaslysnolatea ‘lzasorzeede {$226, and owes penalties pursuant‘to‘ Labor 
Code §§2699(.f)‘and70r 226.3. 

‘ " v H " H i ' 

ES iXtiig- i‘egardihglwaitih‘gftjifiie«penalties, pursuant-:‘to‘g-Ii‘abfii‘flfide-QQOB;the.Empldyee and alltfo’tliei; 
similarly: thaw aggrieved ”empleyees afeéentitled tothirty.d‘étykbrfiimgeéagitteir regfilar’s‘fate of payfiféjftlie 
EnipldyEr’s tailored); pa3?;,all'wage§ due u'pdhisepariitié‘nzof employment; Here, because of the Employer’s. 
illegalgwageiandh’eur “p"‘tili'ei‘es' asset forthjaliove, the Employer derivative]y.‘violatedi’leabofrifiidde §§201'-203; 
and ‘owes penalties puf‘suantto ipabencade §§2699(f),:«203 and/or 256‘ 

‘ V" ’ i ’ ' ' 

Remnant tolzluaberréhéie:‘§2699.3(a‘)_(v7 A)-,-pl"ea:se advise Within sixty-five (65) calendar days of the 
postmark ate of thiS'notieeMliether the ILWD fends‘to investigate these alleged‘violations. F uijther, 
"pursuanteto, ‘ahorCe’defj§2699i§;(e)(2)(A)_, theIEniployerjnay curethef alleged weighting 'itifihithiriyéth 23:63) 
eatendar‘days \ ‘E‘Eth‘e pestmark‘ddté of this noti‘cé,;and"§itithin that 'perijod,‘give notice}: 

_ W ,, red maili 
‘ ; 

alleged violation is Cured, including a description of'actions taken. 
” b ‘ i ‘ ' ' ' 

_We_ tindei‘s‘tandth‘at, if wedo notji‘etieiv‘eairejSpons’e ‘within sixty-five (65) calendar days of the postmark 
and filing dateid'fithislnotiiC‘e that thehWD’A intends? to investigate these allegations and/or a notice 'fro'r‘n‘ the

‘ 

Employer that the alleged violations are cured; and/or 'ifthe alleged violations are not cured, then; the Employee 
may immediately‘there'aftercommence a civil action against the Employer pursuant to Labor Code§2699 

:T hank‘you for your consideration; 

. ’L 

Gregg Lander 

cc’: (via CertifiedtMa‘il) cc:~~(v‘ia Certified Mail) 
SEION: MEDICAL CENTER‘: VERITY HEALTHASY‘STEM OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 
I900 Sullivan Avenue 203 RedoodShores Parkway, Suite 800 , 

Daly, CA 94015 Redwood City; CA 94065

.PAGA Administrator g
Re: Seton Medical Center, et'al.
Mareh 13, 2018
Page 2

Li" “a; ii]?Emplbfl’vfzfiilefl topmitildgfififiéfimfilfifiéfin‘dfil13mm?’similarl'sz’sitfiatéd iaggfievedi‘emfiloyks
with paidgire“ malts, as thafimpigyeeana‘au otheg simi[atIy‘jsimarettag‘gfieyediémployegséaiemralwaysagét.
full tenminute:uriinjtfermpfedragtibieak'si‘yxfithinfihe fimfourjhogfigd dieie'shin: ogfiiajfirffriac‘tiontlierfed “rid~~
"6,:t subsequent~fou‘rahon‘is-worked there-sites anamajoefraCtibn, thereof Asrsnchgthe‘ Em ‘ ee andiral limiter-:2
gs‘i'milaij' mated agggiejyedemployeeé’Wfitfit’dtam sprovzided'lfiefgfaliygcompliant‘te's‘t ,, H , dyer

,, A g“ lamestperiod‘penaityiofiany'ofitfieSeyipiatiofis‘.As suelig3iflie,Emplo'j’gjér“xéiblfitéd;.[;al’iorEC_ ‘ 226.7
and thefapplicable“‘lndustrial Wage Order, 1i) 2(‘A)/(B), and owes restperiod vi/a'g'esand penalties pursuantto-
gligljgr’gCode§§§269.9(t) and/or558. '

Fourth, regarding wage:‘§tatementsggpur-s’tte'tnt to ‘Labor’Code;§226(a).and ‘the‘ applicable Industrial ~Wage
Order; tli‘efiiEi‘jnp‘lgyer is requi’iféil' to ineli‘ideféertaii‘nhinfoi‘fnatibn on an erupldyeefs wage statement; Here, the
:Emplo vis 'ieij«.impmpelfiwage"mkménfiittfi-tfieéifimfilfiyee‘and”a!l;6tfic§j§ufiilarly¥’3imatédag‘g‘tie‘ved
" ‘ bee-anewthjeinple‘yen-‘swagestatements ”djzgiotga ‘ ’Sscfititaihgtlie‘édiffieét;infortiiiitifin’fifigardii‘ig

' player independently violatedilgalior‘éege§226gafidsowe3jpenalti‘es {pursuant to.. sauchthe‘fi‘igagqeaq gaéaaggandmzszaaa.
myalso regarding wagestatements, and in addition to the alleged independent violations of Labor

Code §226 above; pursuant to LaborCode §226 and the appliCable‘ Industrial Wage Order, theEmployer: is-
required toinclude on a‘paystub Sufi-information as all hoursworked, the hourly rate of‘pay, and the rate‘of
pay‘for overtimeand double time work. Here, because of the Employer’s illegal wage andlho‘ur polieiesas set
I orth, above, all wages earned weren'ot reflected onithe wage statements provided by the-Employer tothe‘
Empifiyeesand all ewen"simila:!=‘ itilatéd aggrreVeden'iployees, and the:Employer issued improper Wage
Estateme'n'ts..As Subhgthe.EmployerfifdErivatiitélyfitiblafe‘d LafiorCode §226, and owes penalties pursuant‘to Labdii
Code §§2699(.f).and/or 226.3. ' ’ ' " ” " " ‘

JES i‘Xtiig- ijegardihglwaitingftjiihe penalties, pursuanttwLaborCfideé203,themployee and allafo’tli‘jesu
sgimilafilj"; tijate'ddagg‘rieved employee‘s ardentitled totfiirty-diiy’bfiWa‘geg‘agtfleir regenerate ofpayifc‘ifithje
Emgleyér’s failureli); pay;allwfige§ due u‘pdhiseparatiti‘n:of employment; Here, because of the Employer’s.
illeg‘ Ili. wage:‘ahdli'our‘ pelicies 553$ forthjaliove,“the.Employer derivative]y.‘violated§l§aboif3€dde '§§201-203;
and ‘bwes penalties pursuantto yam-gene §§2699(f),;«203 and/or 256,

human: toQlflaborréoii‘ef ~§‘2699.3i§)(2§§ia5§grass advise ‘within sixty-five (65) tialendair days grins
postmarlii‘ialata of thiS’notieeEWiiethen the LWfiA-‘ihtféndsfto investigate these a]leged‘yiolation§.gli‘urther,
pursuantito filsabor’CQde:§269953§(c)(2)(A)_, the‘Empldyei‘jriay cur‘é:.,t.h§f alleged violgagjti girth 6:63)
aalendardaysaofisihe postmarkfla‘té of this notieé;anti"§§tithin that peribd,~give notice-2g g g ‘fied m f
alleged violation is Cured, including a description ofactions taken; ' ' '

_We. Undifrs'tanii.tfi‘at. ifwedo -no2§fiefieive.airejspons.‘e ‘within sixty-five (65) calendar days of the postmark
and filing dat‘eiofi thisiinotiee that theJIaWD‘fi intends to investigate these allegations and/or a netice frd‘r‘r’i the ‘
Employer that the alleged violations are. cured; and/or‘ifthe alleged violations are not cured, thenthe Employee
may immediately ,thereafier‘commence a civil action against the Employer parsuan; to gabo‘r Code§2699

Thankryou .for‘your consideration;

Yaw. 12W Yoga? .. ”a. a
g/ ‘_- “_‘": 1M

‘keayih'iT. Barnes"
Gregg Lander

90’: (via Cer’tifie‘dMajl) cos-(Via Certified Mail)
SEION: MEDICAL CENTER; VERIFY HEALTH‘SY'STEM OF CALIFORNIA, INC.
1900 Sullivan Avenue 203 RédWood-Shores Parkway, Suite 800 ,
Daly, CA 94015 Redwood City; CA 94065
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PAGA Administrator 
Re: Seton Medical Center, et a1. 

March 13, 2018 
Page 3 

cc. (viaU. S. Mail) 
Emil Davtyan, Esq 
DAVTYAN PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION 
21900 Burbank BoUlevard, Suite 300 
Woodland Hills, CA 91367 

"1:§v‘pw~vv-mvwm» 

,., 

W

, 

- 

,<’ 

- 

~ 

,. 

.. 

. 

.,

W

PAGAAdministrator
Re: Seton Medical Center; et a1.
March 13 2018
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Emil Davtyan, Esq
DAVTYANPROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION
21900 Burbank Boulevard, Sfiite 300
Woodland Hills, CA 91367
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TEL: (313)5499100 
Fm {373)5490l0l 

PROOF OF SERVICE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

I, the undersigned, am over the age of 18 years and not a party to this action. My business 
address is 1635 Pontius Avenue, Second Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90025-3361, which is located 
in Los Angeles County, where the service herein occurred. 

On the date of execution hereof, I caused to be served the following attached document/s: 

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 

on the interested parties in this action, addressed as follows: 

Attorneys [or Defendant: Attorneys [or Plaintifls: 

An Nguyen Ruda, Esq. Emil Davtyan, Esq. 
JEFFER MANGELS BUTLER & MITCHELL DAVTYAN PROFESSIONAL LAW 
LLP CORPORATION 
2 Embarcadero Center, 5th Floor 21900 Burbank Boulevard, Suite 300 
San Francisco, CA 94111 Woodland Hills, CA 91367 
Tel.: (415) 398—8080 / Fax: (415) 398—5584 Tel.: (818) 992-2935 / Fax: (818) 975—5521" 

Email: Ahn@JMBM.com Email: Emil@davtyanlaw.com 

using the following service method(s): 

X VIA MAIL: I caused the document(s) to be served to be deposited at: 1635 Pontius 
Avenue, Second Floor, Los Angeles, CA, which is a mailbox or other like facility regularly 
maintained by the United States Postal Service, in a sealed envelope, with postage paid, 
addressed to the person(s) on whom the document(s) is/are to be served, at the office address as 
last given by that/those person(s), otherwise at that/those person(s)’ place(s) of residence. I am 
aware that on motion of any party served, service is presumed invalid if the postal cancellation 
date or postage meter date is more than one (1) day after the date of deposit for mailing stated 
herein. 

I DECLARE under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed on June 26, 2018, at Los Angeles, California. 

44—42—— 
Cindy Rivas 

-1- 
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PROOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I, the undersigned, am over the age of 18 years and not a party to this action. My business
address is 1635 Pontius Avenue, Second Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90025-3361, which is located
in Los Angeles County, where the service herein occurred.

On the date of execution hereof, I caused to be served the following attached document/s:

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

on the interested parties in this action, addressed as follows:

Attorneys tor Defendant: Attorneys tor Plaintiffs:

An Nguyen Ruda, Esq. Emil Davtyan, Esq.
JEFFER MANGELS BUTLER & MITCHELL DAVTYAN PROFESSIONAL LAW
LLP CORPORATION
2 Embarcadero Center, 5th Floor 21900 Burbank Boulevard, Suite 300
San Francisco, CA 94111 Woodland Hills, CA 91367
Tel.: (415) 398-8080 / Fax: (415) 398—5584 Tel.: (818) 992-2935 / Fax: (818) 975-5521"
Email: Ahn@JMBM.com Email: Emil@davtyanlaw.com

using the following service method(s):

X VIA MAIL: I caused the document(s) to be served to be deposited at: 1635 Pontius
Avenue, Second Floor, Los Angeles, CA, which is a mailbox or other like facility regularly
maintained by the United States Postal Service, in a sealed envelope, with postage paid,
addressed to the person(s) on whom the document(s) is/are to be served, at the office address as
last given by that/those person(s), otherwise at that/those person(s)’ place(s) of residence. I am
aware that on motion of any party served, service is presumed invalid if the postal cancellation
date or postage meter date is more than one (1) day after the date of deposit for mailing stated
herein.

I DECLARE under penalty ofperjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on June 26, 2018, at Los Angeles, California.44—12——
Cindy Rivals
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1

David Shemano

From: Moyron, Tania M. <tania.moyron@dentons.com>
Sent: Friday, March 8, 2019 9:14 AM
To: David Shemano
Cc: Maizel, Samuel R.; Montgomery, Claude D.
Subject: RE: Verity

Yes, the Debtors are not willing to consent. Please feel free to call us if you want to discuss. 
Best, Tania 
 

 

 
Tania M. Moyron 
Partner 
 
D +1 213 243 6101   |   M +1 310 402 4284   |   O 1 310 402 4284   |   US Internal 36101 
tania.moyron@dentons.com 
Bio   |   Website 
 
Dentons US LLP  

   
Hamilton Harrison & Mathews > Mardemootoo Balgobin > HPRP > Zain & Co. > Delany Law > Dinner 
Martin > Maclay Murray & Spens > Gallo Barrios Pickmann > Muñoz > Cardenas & Cardenas > Lopez 
Velarde > Rodyk > Boekel > OPF Partners > 大成  

   
Dentons is a global legal practice providing client services worldwide through its member firms and affiliates. This 
email may be confidential and protected by legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, disclosure, 
copying, distribution and use are prohibited; please notify us immediately and delete this copy from your system. 
Please see dentons.com for Legal Notices. 

 
From: David Shemano <dshemano@shemanolaw.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 3:16 PM 
To: Moyron, Tania M. <tania.moyron@dentons.com> 
Cc: Maizel, Samuel R. <samuel.maizel@dentons.com> 
Subject: RE: Verity 
 
Do you have an answer? 
 
 
David B. Shemano 
ShemanoLaw 
1801 Century Park East, Suite 1600 
Los Angeles, CA  90067 
Tel: (310) 492-5033 
Email: dshemano@shemanolaw.com 
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Official Form 410 Proof of Claim page 1

 410 

Proof of Claim 12/15

Read the instructions before filling out this form. This form is for making a claim for payment in a bankruptcy case. Do not use this form to 
make a request for payment of an administrative expense. Make such a request according to 11 U.S.C. § 503. 

Filers must leave out or redact information that is entitled to privacy on this form or on any attached documents. Attach redacted copies of any 
documents that support the claim, such as promissory notes, purchase orders, invoices, itemized statements of running accounts, contracts, judgments, 
mortgages, and security agreements. Do not send original documents; they may be destroyed after scanning. If the documents are not available, 
explain in an attachment. 

A person who files a fraudulent claim could be fined up to $500,000, imprisoned for up to 5 years, or both. 18 U.S.C. §§ 152, 157, and 3571. 

Fill in all the information about the claim as of the date the case was filed. That date is on the notice of bankruptcy (Form 309) that you received. 

Part 1:  Identify the Claim 

1. Who is the current
creditor? ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of the current creditor (the person or entity to be paid for this claim) 

Other names the creditor used with the debtor ________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Has this claim been
acquired from
someone else?

No
Yes. From whom?  ______________________________________________________________________________________________________

3. Where should notices
and payments to the
creditor be sent?

Federal Rule of
Bankruptcy Procedure
(FRBP) 2002(g)

Where should notices to the creditor be sent? Where should payments to the creditor be sent? (if 
different) 

_____________________________________________________ 
Name  

______________________________________________________ 
Number Street 

______________________________________________________ 
City State ZIP Code  

Contact phone ________________________ 

Contact email ________________________ 

_____________________________________________________ 
Name  

______________________________________________________ 
Number Street 

______________________________________________________ 
City State ZIP Code  

Contact phone ________________________ 

Contact email ________________________ 

Uniform claim identifier for electronic payments in chapter 13 (if you use one):  

__  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __  __ 

4. Does this claim amend
one already filed?

No

Yes. Claim number on court claims registry (if known) ________ Filed on   ________________________ 
MM /  DD /  YYYY

5. Do you know if anyone
else has filed a proof
of claim for this claim?

No
Yes. Who made the earlier filing?  _____________________________

Debtor 1 __________________________________________________________________  

Debtor 2 ________________________________________________________________ 
(Spouse, if filing) 

United States Bankruptcy Court for the: __________ District of __________ 

Case number ___________________________________________ 

  Fill in this information to identify the case: 

Verity Health System of California, Inc.

Central District of California

18-20151

Waheed Wahidi, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated

Kevin T. Barnes

1635 Pontius Avenue, Second Floor

Los Angeles CA 90025

(323) 549-9100

Barnes@kbarnes.com

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Claim 412-1    Filed 03/26/19    Desc Main Document      Page 1
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Proof of Claim page 2

Part 2:  Give Information About the Claim as of the Date the Case Was Filed 

6. Do you have any number
you use to identify the
debtor?

No
Yes. Last 4 digits of the debtor’s account or any number you use to identify the debtor:  ____   ____   ____  ____

7. How much is the claim? $_____________________________.  Does this amount include interest or other charges? 

No

Yes.  Attach statement itemizing interest, fees, expenses, or other
charges required by Bankruptcy Rule 3001(c)(2)(A). 

8. What is the basis of the
claim?

Examples: Goods sold, money loaned, lease, services performed, personal injury or wrongful death, or credit card. 

Attach redacted copies of any documents supporting the claim required by Bankruptcy Rule 3001(c). 

Limit disclosing information that is entitled to privacy, such as health care information.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Is all or part of the claim
secured?

No
Yes. The claim is secured by a lien on property.

Nature of property: 

Real estate. If the claim is secured by the debtor’s principal residence, file a Mortgage Proof of Claim
Attachment (Official Form 410-A) with this Proof of Claim. 

Motor vehicle
Other. Describe: _____________________________________________________________ 

Basis for perfection: _____________________________________________________________ 

Attach redacted copies of documents, if any, that show evidence of perfection of a security interest (for 
example, a mortgage, lien, certificate of title, financing statement, or other document that shows the lien has 
been filed or recorded.)  

Value of property:   $__________________ 

Amount of the claim that is secured:   $__________________ 

Amount of the claim that is unsecured:  $__________________ (The sum of the secured and unsecured 
amounts should match the amount in line 7.) 

Amount necessary to cure any default as of the date of the petition:  $____________________ 

Annual Interest Rate (when case was filed) _______% 

Fixed
Variable

10. Is this claim based on a
lease?

No

Yes. Amount necessary to cure any default as of the date of the petition. $____________________ 

11. Is this claim subject to a
right of setoff?

No

Yes. Identify the property: ___________________________________________________________________

Currently unliquidated

Employee claims based on violations of California Labor Code

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Claim 412-1    Filed 03/26/19    Desc Main Document      Page 2
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ATTACHMENT TO PROOF OF CLAIM 

Claimant was an employee of Seton Medical Center from approximately May 

2017 through October 2017.  Verity Health System of California, Inc., the parent of 

Seton Medical Center, was Claimant’s joint employer. 

On June 21, 2018, Claimant, on behalf of himself and all other employees 

similarly situated, filed a complaint against certain of the Debtors in the Superior Court 

of the State of California for the County of San Mateo (the “Superior Court”), Case No. 

18CIV03214, alleging violations of the California Labor Code, the California Business and 

Professions Code, applicable Wage Orders issued by the California Industrial Welfare 

Commission, and related common law principles.  A first amended complaint was filed 

on June 26, 2018.  A copy of the first amended complaint is attached as Exhibit A. 

In summary, the complaint alleges that the Debtors (1) consistently administered 

a uniform company policy and procedure to round down the recorded time of hourly 

employees in violation of applicable California law and regulations, (2) as a matter of 

established company policy, failed to comply with the meal period requirements of 

applicable California law and regulations, (3) as a matter of established company policy, 

failed to comply with the rest period requirements of applicable California law and 

regulations, (4) as a matter of established company policy, failed to comply with the 

itemized wage statement requirements of applicable California law and regulations, (5) 

as a matter of established company policy, did not pay all wages due to former hourly 

employees due to the unlawful rounding, meal and rest policies as required by 

applicable California law and regulations, (6) subjected hourly employees to unlawful, 

unfair and/or fraudulent business acts/practices in the form of the above stated 

violations in violation of section 17200 et seq. of the California Business & Professions 

Code, and (7) are subject to penalties pursuant to section 2699 et seq. of the California 

Labor Code.  

Claimant asserts an unliquidated unsecured claim based on the allegations set 

forth in the complaint.   Claimant also assert a claim on behalf of all other employees 

similarly situated, as set forth in the complaint.  The amount of the class claim is 

currently unliquidated. 

Claimant reserves the right to amend or supplement this proof of claim at any 

time for any reason. 

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Claim 412-1    Filed 03/26/19    Desc Main Document      Page 4
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IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 

FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

SAN ANTONIO DIVISION 

In re: 

BUFFETS, LLC, et al. 

Debtors. 

§ 

§

§ 

§ 

§ 

§ 

Chapter 11 

Case No. 16-50557-RBK 

Jointly Administered 

ORDER PURSUANT TO 11 U.S.C. § 362(d) 

MODIFYING THE AUTOMATIC STAY IMPOSED BY 11 U.S.C. § 362(a) 

Upon the motion of Movants Lynn Walter, Lynn Brown, and Kathlene Abston, 

individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated (“Movants”) for an order, pursuant to 

11 U.S.C. § 362(d), modifying the automatic stay in effect in this case under 11 U.S.C. § 362(a) 

to permit Movants to enforce the notice order in a pending civil action in the United States 

District Court of South Carolina Civil Action No. 6:13-cv-02995-JMC, against the Debtor 

AMENDED

The relief described hereinbelow is SO ORDERED.

Signed January 31, 2017.

__________________________________
Ronald B. King

Chief United States Bankruptcy Judge
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Buffets, Inc. d/b/a Ovation Brands (“Debtor”), and there being due and sufficient notice of the 

Motion; the Court having heard from the Parties and interested Third Parties; and, after due 

deliberation, good and sufficient cause appearing, it is hereby 

ORDERED, that Notice shall issue to a class of all persons who have worked for 

Buffets, Inc., also known as Ovation Brands, and its successors as servers between July 18, 2012, 

and the date of final judgment in this matter who worked as tipped employees earning a sub-

minimum, tip credit wage; and it is further 

ORDERED, that within 10 days following this Court order authorizing notice, Debtors 

will produce a list of all putative class members including their last known address and the dates 

of employment since July 18, 2012, in a manipulable format that allows for effective and 

efficient Notice such as Microsoft Excel or .csv (the “Class List”) to Plaintiffs’ counsel for 

delivery to Donlin Recano; The list will include the name and last known mailing address of all 

putative class members; and it is further 

ORDERED, that Notice will be sent via first class mail and include only the Court-

approved notice and consent form. No additional enclosures will be included; and it is further 

ORDERED, that the Notice shall be sent by Donlin Recano & Company, Inc. within 15 

days of receiving the Class List and the costs of notice shall be borne by the Debtors; and it is 

further 

ORDERED, that the form of Notice to issue will be that previously agreed to by 

Plaintiffs and Buffets, Inc., ordered by the U.S. District Court for the District of South Carolina, 

and on file at Dkt. No. 1512-4. Any reference on the Notice, including the Consent to Sue, to 

Walter et al., v. Buffets, Inc., Civil Action Number 6:13-cv-02995-JMC, United States District 

Court, District of South Carolina shall be changed to In re: Buffets, LLC, et al, Case No. 16-
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50557-RBK, U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of Texas, San Antonio Division; 

and it is further 

ORDERED, that all persons receiving the notice will have thirty (30) days from the time 

Notice issues to return an executed Consent to Sue form to Plaintiffs’ counsel. All consents to 

sue must be received or postmarked within 30 days of the date notice issues (the “Opt-In 

Period”); and it is further 

ORDERED, Plaintiffs’ counsel will use best efforts to file claims in this action on behalf 

of any class member who returns an executed Consent to Sue within thirty (30) days of receiving 

the Consent to Sue. In any case, all claims will be filed within thirty (30) days of the end of the 

opt-in period. No Consents to Sue will be filed in the U.S. District Court for the District of South 

Carolina. 

 

# # # 

 

Prepared and submitted, with the consent of Debtors, by: 

 

 

 

Michael J.D. Sweeney, (Pro Hac Vice) 

New York State Bar No. 2954923 

Getman, Sweeney & Dunn, PLLC 

9 Paradies Lane 

New Paltz, NY 12561           

Tel.   845-255-9370 

Fax   845-255-8649 

 

COUNSEL FOR MOVANTS 
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PROOF OF SERVICE OF DOCUMENT 
 
I am over the age of 18 and not a party to this bankruptcy case or adversary proceeding.  My business address is 
 
SHEMANOLAW 
1801 Century Park East, Suite 1600 
Los Angeles, CA  90067. 
 
A true and correct copy of the foregoing document entitled NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION OF (1) WAHEED 
WAHIDI FOR AUTHORIZATION TO FILE A CLASS PROOF OF CLAIM ON BEHALF OF CLAIMANTS SIMILARLY 
SITUATED, AND (2) ERNESTO MADRIGAL FOR AUTHORIZATION TO FILE A CLASS REQUEST FOR PAYMENT 
OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE ON BEHALF OF CLAIMANTS SIMILARLY SITUATED will be served or was served 
(a) on the judge in chambers in the form and manner required by LBR 5005-2(d); and (b) in the manner stated below: 
 
1.  TO BE SERVED BY THE COURT VIA NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING (NEF):  Pursuant to controlling General 
Orders and LBR, the foregoing document will be served by the court via NEF and hyperlink to the document. On March 
26, 2019, I checked the CM/ECF docket for this bankruptcy case or adversary proceeding and determined that the 
following persons are on the Electronic Mail Notice List to receive NEF transmission at the email addresses stated below: 
 

• Melinda Alonzo     ml7829@att.com 

• Robert N Amkraut     ramkraut@foxrothschild.com 

• Kyra E Andrassy     kandrassy@swelawfirm.com, 
lgarrett@swelawfirm.com;gcruz@swelawfirm.com;jchung@swelawfirm.com 

• Simon Aron     saron@wrslawyers.com 

• Lauren T Attard     lattard@bakerlaw.com, abalian@bakerlaw.com 

• Allison R Axenrod     allison@claimsrecoveryllc.com 

• Keith Patrick Banner     kbanner@greenbergglusker.com, 
sharper@greenbergglusker.com;calendar@greenbergglusker.com 

• Cristina E Bautista     cristina.bautista@kattenlaw.com, ecf.lax.docket@kattenlaw.com 

• James Cornell Behrens     jbehrens@milbank.com, 
gbray@milbank.com;mshinderman@milbank.com;hmaghakian@milbank.com;dodonnell@milbank.com;j
brewster@milbank.com;JWeber@milbank.com 

• Ron Bender     rb@lnbyb.com 

• Bruce Bennett     bbennett@jonesday.com 

• Peter J Benvenutti     pbenvenutti@kellerbenvenutti.com, pjbenven74@yahoo.com 

• Elizabeth Berke-Dreyfuss     edreyfuss@wendel.com 

• Steven M Berman     sberman@slk-law.com 

• Alicia K Berry     Alicia.Berry@doj.ca.gov 

• Stephen F Biegenzahn     efile@sfblaw.com 

• Karl E Block     kblock@loeb.com, jvazquez@loeb.com;ladocket@loeb.com 

• Dustin P Branch     branchd@ballardspahr.com, 
carolod@ballardspahr.com;hubenb@ballardspahr.com;Pollack@ballardspahr.com 

• Michael D Breslauer     mbreslauer@swsslaw.com, 
wyones@swsslaw.com;mbreslauer@ecf.courtdrive.com;wyones@ecf.courtdrive.com 

• Chane Buck     cbuck@jonesday.com 

• Damarr M Butler     butler.damarr@pbgc.gov, efile@pbgc.gov 

• Lori A Butler     butler.lori@pbgc.gov, efile@pbgc.gov 

• Howard Camhi     hcamhi@ecjlaw.com, tcastelli@ecjlaw.com;amatsuoka@ecjlaw.com 

• Shirley Cho     scho@pszjlaw.com 

• Jacquelyn H Choi     jchoi@swesq.com 

• Shawn M Christianson     cmcintire@buchalter.com, schristianson@buchalter.com 

• Kevin Collins     kevin.collins@btlaw.com, Kathleen.lytle@btlaw.com 

• David N Crapo     dcrapo@gibbonslaw.com, elrosen@gibbonslaw.com 

• Mariam Danielyan     md@danielyanlawoffice.com, danielyan.mar@gmail.com 
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• Brian L Davidoff     bdavidoff@greenbergglusker.com, 
calendar@greenbergglusker.com;jking@greenbergglusker.com 

• Aaron Davis     aaron.davis@bryancave.com, kat.flaherty@bryancave.com 

• Anthony Dutra     adutra@hansonbridgett.com 

• Kevin M Eckhardt     keckhardt@huntonak.com, keckhardt@hunton.com 

• Andy J Epstein     taxcpaesq@gmail.com 

• Christine R Etheridge     christine.etheridge@ikonfin.com 

• M Douglas Flahaut     flahaut.douglas@arentfox.com 

• Michael G Fletcher     mfletcher@frandzel.com, sking@frandzel.com 

• Joseph D Frank     jfrank@fgllp.com, 
mmatlock@fgllp.com;csmith@fgllp.com;jkleinman@fgllp.com;csucic@fgllp.com 

• William B Freeman     william.freeman@kattenlaw.com, 
nicole.jones@kattenlaw.com,ecf.lax.docket@kattenlaw.com 

• Eric J Fromme     efromme@tocounsel.com, lchapman@tocounsel.com;sschuster@tocounsel.com 

• Amir Gamliel     amir-gamliel-9554@ecf.pacerpro.com, 
cmallahi@perkinscoie.com;DocketLA@perkinscoie.com;JDerosier@perkinscoie.com 

• Jeffrey K Garfinkle     jgarfinkle@buchalter.com, docket@buchalter.com;dcyrankowski@buchalter.com 

• Lawrence B Gill     lgill@nelsonhardiman.com, rrange@nelsonhardiman.com 

• Paul R. Glassman     pglassman@sycr.com 

• Eric D Goldberg     eric.goldberg@dlapiper.com, eric-goldberg-1103@ecf.pacerpro.com 

• David Guess     dguess@bmkattorneys.com, 4579179420@filings.docketbird.com 

• Anna Gumport     agumport@sidley.com 

• Mary H Haas     maryhaas@dwt.com, melissastrobel@dwt.com;laxdocket@dwt.com;yunialubega@dwt.com 

• James A Hayes     jhayes@jamesahayesaplc.com 

• Michael S Held     mheld@jw.com 

• Lawrence J Hilton     lhilton@onellp.com, 
lthomas@onellp.com;info@onellp.com;evescance@onellp.com;nlichtenberger@onellp.com;rgolder@one
llp.com 

• Robert M Hirsh     Robert.Hirsh@arentfox.com 

• Florice Hoffman     fhoffman@socal.rr.com, floricehoffman@gmail.com 

• Michael Hogue     hoguem@gtlaw.com, fernandezc@gtlaw.com;SFOLitDock@gtlaw.com 

• Matthew B Holbrook     mholbrook@sheppardmullin.com, mmanns@sheppardmullin.com 

• David I Horowitz     david.horowitz@kirkland.com, 
keith.catuara@kirkland.com;terry.ellis@kirkland.com;jay.bhimani@kirkland.com;elsa.banuelos@kirkland.
com;ivon.granados@kirkland.com 

• Marsha A Houston     mhouston@reedsmith.com 

• Brian D Huben     hubenb@ballardspahr.com, carolod@ballardspahr.com 

• Lawrence A Jacobson     laj@cohenandjacobson.com 

• John Mark Jennings     johnmark.jennings@kutakrock.com 

• Monique D Jewett-Brewster     mjb@hopkinscarley.com, eamaro@hopkinscarley.com 

• Crystal Johnson     M46380@ATT.COM 

• Gregory R Jones     gjones@mwe.com, rnhunter@mwe.com 

• Lance N Jurich     ljurich@loeb.com, karnote@loeb.com;ladocket@loeb.com 

• Jeff D Kahane     jkahane@duanemorris.com, dmartinez@duanemorris.com 

• Steven J Kahn     skahn@pszyjw.com 

• Cameo M Kaisler     salembier.cameo@pbgc.gov, efile@pbgc.gov 

• Ivan L Kallick     ikallick@manatt.com, ihernandez@manatt.com 

• Ori Katz     okatz@sheppardmullin.com, cshulman@sheppardmullin.com;ezisholtz@sheppardmullin.com 

• Jane Kim     jkim@kellerbenvenutti.com 

• Monica Y Kim     myk@lnbrb.com, myk@ecf.inforuptcy.com 

• Gary E Klausner     gek@lnbyb.com 

• Joseph A Kohanski     jkohanski@bushgottlieb.com, kprestegard@bushgottlieb.com 

• Jeffrey C Krause     jkrause@gibsondunn.com, dtrujillo@gibsondunn.com;jstern@gibsondunn.com 

• Darryl S Laddin     bkrfilings@agg.com 
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• Robert S Lampl     advocate45@aol.com, rlisarobinsonr@aol.com 

• Richard A Lapping     richard@lappinglegal.com 

• Paul J Laurin     plaurin@btlaw.com, slmoore@btlaw.com;jboustani@btlaw.com 

• David E Lemke     david.lemke@wallerlaw.com, 
chris.cronk@wallerlaw.com;Melissa.jones@wallerlaw.com;cathy.thomas@wallerlaw.com 

• Elan S Levey     elan.levey@usdoj.gov, louisa.lin@usdoj.gov 

• Tracy L Mainguy     bankruptcycourtnotices@unioncounsel.net, tmainguy@unioncounsel.net 

• Samuel R Maizel     samuel.maizel@dentons.com, 
alicia.aguilar@dentons.com;docket.general.lit.LOS@dentons.com;tania.moyron@dentons.com;kathryn.h
oward@dentons.com;joan.mack@dentons.com 

• Alvin Mar     alvin.mar@usdoj.gov 

• Craig G Margulies     Craig@MarguliesFaithlaw.com, 
Victoria@MarguliesFaithlaw.com;David@MarguliesFaithLaw.com;Helen@MarguliesFaithlaw.com 

• Hutchison B Meltzer     hutchison.meltzer@doj.ca.gov, Alicia.Berry@doj.ca.gov 

• Christopher Minier     becky@ringstadlaw.com, arlene@ringstadlaw.com 

• John A Moe     john.moe@dentons.com, 
glenda.spratt@dentons.com,derry.kalve@dentons.com,andy.jinnah@dentons.com 

• Susan I Montgomery     susan@simontgomerylaw.com, 
assistant@simontgomerylaw.com;simontgomerylawecf.com@gmail.com;montgomerysr71631@notify.be
stcase.com 

• Monserrat Morales     mmorales@marguliesfaithlaw.com, 
Victoria@marguliesfaithlaw.com;David@MarguliesFaithLaw.com;Helen@marguliesfaithlaw.com 

• Kevin H Morse     kevin.morse@saul.com, rmarcus@AttorneyMM.com;sean.williams@saul.com 

• Marianne S Mortimer     mmortimer@sycr.com, tingman@sycr.com 

• Tania M Moyron     tania.moyron@dentons.com, chris.omeara@dentons.com 

• Alan I Nahmias     anahmias@mbnlawyers.com, jdale@mbnlawyers.com 

• Jennifer L Nassiri     jennifernassiri@quinnemanuel.com 

• Charles E Nelson     nelsonc@ballardspahr.com, wassweilerw@ballardspahr.com 

• Sheila Gropper Nelson     shedoesbklaw@aol.com 

• Mark A Neubauer     mneubauer@carltonfields.com, 
mlrodriguez@carltonfields.com;smcloughlin@carltonfields.com;schau@carltonfields.com;NDunn@carlto
nfields.com;ecfla@carltonfields.com 

• Nancy Newman     nnewman@hansonbridgett.com, 
ajackson@hansonbridgett.com;calendarclerk@hansonbridgett.com 

• Bryan L Ngo     bngo@fortislaw.com, 
BNgo@bluecapitallaw.com;SPicariello@fortislaw.com;JNguyen@fortislaw.com;JNguyen@bluecapitallaw.
com 

• Melissa T Ngo     ngo.melissa@pbgc.gov, efile@pbgc.gov 

• Abigail V O'Brient     avobrient@mintz.com, 
docketing@mintz.com;DEHashimoto@mintz.com;nleali@mintz.com;ABLevin@mintz.com;GJLeon@mintz
.com 

• John R OKeefe     jokeefe@metzlewis.com, slohr@metzlewis.com 

• Scott H Olson     solson@vedderprice.com, jcano@vedderprice.com,jparker@vedderprice.com;scott-olson-
2161@ecf.pacerpro.com,ecfsfdocket@vedderprice.com 

• Aram Ordubegian     ordubegian.aram@arentfox.com 

• Keith C Owens     kowens@venable.com, khoang@venable.com 

• Paul J Pascuzzi     ppascuzzi@ffwplaw.com, lnlasley@ffwplaw.com 

• Lisa M Peters     lisa.peters@kutakrock.com, marybeth.brukner@kutakrock.com 

• Christopher J Petersen     cjpetersen@blankrome.com, gsolis@blankrome.com 

• Mark D Plevin     mplevin@crowell.com, cromo@crowell.com 

• David M Poitras     dpoitras@wedgewood-inc.com, dpoitras@jmbm.com;dmarcus@wedgewood-
inc.com;aguisinger@wedgewood-inc.com 

• Steven G. Polard     spolard@ch-law.com, cborrayo@ch-law.com 

• David M Powlen     david.powlen@btlaw.com, pgroff@btlaw.com 
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• Christopher E Prince     cprince@lesnickprince.com, 
jmack@lesnickprince.com;mlampton@lesnickprince.com;cprince@ecf.courtdrive.com 

• Lori L Purkey     bareham@purkeyandassociates.com 

• William M Rathbone     wrathbone@grsm.com, jmydlandevans@grsm.com 

• Jason M Reed     Jason.Reed@Maslon.com 

• Michael B Reynolds     mreynolds@swlaw.com, kcollins@swlaw.com 

• J. Alexandra Rhim     arhim@hrhlaw.com 

• Emily P Rich     erich@unioncounsel.net, bankruptcycourtnotices@unioncounsel.net 

• Lesley A Riis     lriis@dpmclaw.com 

• Debra Riley     driley@allenmatkins.com 

• Christopher O Rivas     crivas@reedsmith.com, chris-rivas-8658@ecf.pacerpro.com 

• Julie H Rome-Banks     julie@bindermalter.com 

• Mary H Rose     mrose@buchalter.com, salarcon@buchalter.com 

• Megan A Rowe     mrowe@dsrhealthlaw.com, lwestoby@dsrhealthlaw.com 

• Nathan A Schultz     nschultz@foxrothschild.com 

• William Schumacher     wschumacher@jonesday.com 

• Mark A Serlin     ms@swllplaw.com, mor@swllplaw.com 

• Seth B Shapiro     seth.shapiro@usdoj.gov 

• Joseph Shickich     jshickich@riddellwilliams.com 

• Rosa A Shirley     rshirley@nelsonhardiman.com, 
ksherry@nelsonhardiman.com;lgill@nelsonhardiman.com;jwilson@nelsonhardiman.com;rrange@nelson
hardiman.com 

• Kyrsten Skogstad     kskogstad@calnurses.org, rcraven@calnurses.org 

• Michael St James     ecf@stjames-law.com 

• Andrew Still     astill@swlaw.com, kcollins@swlaw.com 

• Jason D Strabo     jstrabo@mwe.com, ahoneycutt@mwe.com 

• Sabrina L Streusand     Streusand@slollp.com 

• Ralph J Swanson     ralph.swanson@berliner.com, sabina.hall@berliner.com 

• Gary F Torrell     gft@vrmlaw.com 

• United States Trustee (LA)     ustpregion16.la.ecf@usdoj.gov 

• Matthew S Walker     matthew.walker@pillsburylaw.com, candy.kleiner@pillsburylaw.com 

• Jason Wallach     jwallach@ghplaw.com, g33404@notify.cincompass.com 

• Kenneth K Wang     kenneth.wang@doj.ca.gov, 
Jennifer.Kim@doj.ca.gov;Stacy.McKellar@doj.ca.gov;yesenia.caro@doj.ca.gov 

• Phillip K Wang     phillip.wang@rimonlaw.com, david.kline@rimonlaw.com 

• Gerrick Warrington     gwarrington@frandzel.com, sking@frandzel.com 

• Adam G Wentland     awentland@tocounsel.com, lkwon@tocounsel.com 

• Latonia Williams     lwilliams@goodwin.com, bankruptcy@goodwin.com 

• Michael S Winsten     mike@winsten.com 

• Jeffrey C Wisler     jwisler@connollygallagher.com, dperkins@connollygallagher.com 

• Neal L Wolf     nwolf@hansonbridgett.com, 
calendarclerk@hansonbridgett.com,lchappell@hansonbridgett.com 

• Hatty K Yip     hatty.yip@usdoj.gov 

• Andrew J Ziaja     aziaja@leonardcarder.com, 
sgroff@leonardcarder.com;msimons@leonardcarder.com;lbadar@leonardcarder.com 

• Rose Zimmerman     rzimmerman@dalycity.org 
 

Case 2:18-bk-20151-ER    Doc 1914    Filed 03/26/19    Entered 03/26/19 18:52:06    Desc
 Main Document      Page 80 of 81



 

This form is mandatory.  It has been approved for use by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California. 
 

June 2012 F 9013-3.1.PROOF.SERVICE 

2.  SERVED BY UNITED STATES MAIL:   
On March 26, 2019, I served the following persons and/or entities at the last known addresses in this bankruptcy case or 
adversary proceeding by placing a true and correct copy thereof in a sealed envelope in the United States mail, first class, 
postage prepaid, and addressed as follows. Listing the judge here constitutes a declaration that mailing to the judge will 
be completed no later than 24 hours after the document is filed. 
 

Honorable Ernest M. Robles 
United States Bankruptcy Court 
Edward R. Roybal Federal Building 
255 E. Temple Street, Suite 1560 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 

 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 

March 26, 2019  David B. Shemano  /s David B. Shemano 
Date Printed Name  Signature 
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